
 

 
CITY OF LEADVILLE 

 
800 HARRISON AVE. 

LEADVILLE, CO 80461 
  

 REGULAR COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

  

Tuesday 
February 7th, 2023 

 6:00 P.M. Council Chambers & Zoom 

 

* These items may not have briefs or may have additional briefs Tuesday before the Council 
meeting. 

1 | P a g e  

 https://leadville-co-gov.zoom.us/j/83526944548?pwd=aEdjdGtpNlEyZmt5YVQ1bDBQbnN4dz09 

Meeting ID: 835 2694 4548 

Passcode: 80461 

 Dial by your location  

+1 719 359 4580 US 

6:00 pm 1. Call to order of Regular Meeting of City Council 
 2. Roll Call 
 3. Approval of Agenda 
 4. Housekeeping Matters 
 5. Public comments about items not on the agenda 
  Citizens wishing to speak to Council on issues not on the agenda are requested to 

send a message in the chat section or raise their hand in the participant’s section of 
Zoom or in person. Staff will call on the public in order. Comments are limited to 
three (3) minutes (not including council questions). Action, if required, will be 
assigned to city staff. For matters on the agenda, public input will be heard prior to a 
vote being taken on the matter. 

6:15 pm 
 
6:20 pm 
 
6:40 pm 

6. 
 

7. 
 

8. 

Consent Agenda 
A. Approval of January 17, 2023 Minutes 

Presentations and Discussions: 
A. Year-In Review 

Action Items: 
A. Ski-Joring - Altitude Network Streaming Funding Request of $6000 
B. Resolution No. 3, Series of 2023 – A Resolution Adopting an Updated Fee 

Schedule for the City of Leadville 
C. Resolution No. 4, Series of 2023 – A Resolution Approving a Memorandum 

of Understanding with Lake County Acting Through the Lake County Sheriff’s 
Office for Services by the Victim Services Unit 

D. Resolution No. 5, Series of 2023: A Resolution Setting a Meeting Stipend for 
Regular Members of the Planning and Zoning Commission and Historic 
Preservation Commission 

E. Ordinance No. 1, Series of 2023: An Ordinance Establishing a Temporary 
Moratorium on the Acceptance, Processing, and Approval of Any New 
Business Licenses for the Rental, Leasing, or Guiding of Off-Highway Vehicles 
in the City of Leadville – Second Reading 
 
 

https://leadville-co-gov.zoom.us/j/83526944548?pwd=aEdjdGtpNlEyZmt5YVQ1bDBQbnN4dz09


 

2 | P a g e  

 

F. Ordinance No. 12, Series of 2022: An Ordinance Amending Section 2.48.020 
of the Leadville Municipal Code and Adding New Sections 2.36.080 and 
2.48.060 to Permit Members of the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
the Historic Preservation Commission to Receive Meeting Stipends Approved 
by City Council – Second Reading 

7:40 pm 10. Public Meetings Planner  
 11. Mayor’s Report 
 12. Council Reports 
8:00 pm 13. Adjournment 



 

 
CITY OF LEADVILLE 

 
800 HARRISON AVE. 

LEADVILLE, CO 80461 
  

 REGULAR COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

 

 

Tuesday, 
January 17, 2023 

 6:00 P.M. Council Chambers & Zoom 

 

Regular Meeting 1/17/2023 Minutes Presented to CC on 2/07/2023 
                                   Page | 1 
 

1. Call to order of regular council meeting at 6:05 p.m. 
 

2. Roll call:  
a. Present: 6 - Mayor Labbe, CM Lauritzen, CM Hill, CM Luna-Leal, MPT Greene, and CM 

Forgensi  
b. Absent: 1 - CM Grant 

 
Staff Members Present: Deputy City Clerk Hannah Scheer, City Administrator Laurie Simonson, 
Chief Dailey, Director of Finance Dawna Schneiter, Street Department Manager Tony Medina, Animal 
Shelter Managers Caitlin Kuzcko and Jenna Geldreich 
 

3. Approval of the agenda:  CM Hill moved to approve the agenda, and CM Forgensi seconded. All 
present were in favor. 

a. Agenda Revisions: None 
 

4. Housekeeping Matters:    
 
CM Luna-Leal: Homeless Coalition is working on long-term suitable housing versus a shelter using 
state and federal resources. 
 
CM Forgensi: There are no dog waste bags available on the Mineral Belt; the Trail Committee is in 
charge of providing bags, which is run by the County. 

 
5. Public comments for items not on the agenda:  N/A 
 
6. Consent Agenda:  

 
 CM Forgensi moved to approve the minutes of 1/03/2023; CM Hill seconded. All present were in 
      favor.  

a. Agenda Revisions:  6B – “Partnership” – “Partnership(s)” 
        Remove CM Hill from Roll Call 

 
7. Presentations & Discussions: 

 
A. Ski-Joring – Duffy Counsell 

  -Excited for the community to come together for a Wild West event. 
 -Has been seeing commercials for Leadville/Lake County. 
 -If available, asked to have St. Vincent ambulance at the event. 



          
City Council Minutes January 17, 2023 

 
 

2 
Regular Meeting 1/17/2023 Minutes Presented to CC on 2/7/2023 
 

B. Vero Broadband Update 
 -Fiberoptic internet services are going to be available in Leadville 
 -Uses existing infrastructure to get internet from Denver to Leadville 
 -No franchise agreements 
 -There are Federal grants available for internet services 
 -“Save Your Spot” event with free cookies at the Golden Burro on 1/19/2023 

 
C. City Administrator Report – Laurie Simonson updated the City Council regarding the following: 

 
• Cyber Security and Steps to Insulate the City from Cyber Attacks: 

o Our insurance company, CERSA, has a program that tests cyber security infrastructure by 
using false phishing emails. 

o Leadville passed the 2022 cyber inspection. 
o Future cyber security assessments could potentially be paid for with grant monies. 

 
• Off-Highway Vehicle Ordinance: 

o Second reading of the ordinance will be 2/7/2023. 
o The City is focusing on safety, traffic, and noise. 
o The County is focusing on a compliance and enforcement model, essentially a ban. 

 
• Mainstreet Parklet 

o A new contractor was obtained to finish the parklet 
o Last years grant of $150,000 expired on 12/29/22. 
o New grand money in the amount of $110,000 from the Colorado Department of 

Transportation can be used until the end of 2023 to complete the project. 
o Mainstreet has a “new home” with the City. Their new office is at the Tabor Apartments. 

The Street Department helped cleanout the space. 
o Katie Scott is the Board President and Nancy Bailey is the Director. 
o 2/6/2023 there will be a meeting with the State Mainstreet program to discuss goals and 

priorities for the coming year. 
o 1/18/2023 there will be a Mainstreet Board meeting 

 
• Transportation 

o Eagle County and the Regional Transportation Authority may invite Leadville to participate 
in their Eco-Transit program, which would provide additional busses and routes.  

o Their drivers would potentially rent a room(s) at the Spruce St. house. 
 

• 1/24/2023 there will be a work session on the Historic Preservation Code Amendments  
 

• Fee Schedule 
o Department heads will edit the fee schedule to reflect appropriate updated fees. 

 
 
 
 



          
City Council Minutes January 17, 2023 

 
 

3 
Regular Meeting 1/17/2023 Minutes Presented to CC on 2/7/2023 
 

8. Department Reports: 
 
Department heads gave their monthly reports. 
 
9. Actionable Items: 

a. Consideration of Sponsorship for Lake County Performing Arts – Sound of Music 
i. The City of Leadville will be the Title Sponsor which gives $1500 – the Mayor 

suggested giving $2000. 
ii. This sponsorship includes free tickets. City Council suggested they do a community 

give-away for the tickets. 
 

b. Appointment of Barbra Abeyta to the Leadville Housing Authority 
i. Barbra Abeyta was appointed to the Leadville Housing Authority by Dan Osborn. 

ii. Barbra has 22 years of experience at the Mount Massive Manor. 
 

10. Public Meetings Planner:  
- 2/22/2023 – Planning and Zoning meeting regarding 11th St. Dwelling. 
- Leadville Urban Renewal Authority holds meetings the first Thursday of 

every month. The next meeting is 2/2/2023 at 6:00pm. 
 
11. Mayor’s Report: 

- Billed 3 entities for paving 
- Mining Museum has displays from “House with the Eye” 

 
12. Council Reports:   

- CM Luna-Leal:  
i. The Homelessness Coalition should have a schedule plan by the 

end of the month. The focus will be on solutions to crisis response 
and long-term housing versus short-term solutions like a shelter. 

- CM Forgensi: 
i. Will be unable to attend the meeting on the 24th, has another 

conference to attend. 
ii. Starting January 30th he will be on a temporary assignment in the 

Arapahoe Forest. He will maintain a digital presence for 4/5 
months. 

- CM Lauritzen: 
i. Will be absent for the meeting on the 24th. 

ii. 2/1/2023 – Off-highway vehicle Board of County Commissioners 
work session. 

iii. Andrew Purdy is the new chair of the Leadville Urban Renewal 
Authority. 

 
 
  



          
City Council Minutes January 17, 2023 

 
 

4 
Regular Meeting 1/17/2023 Minutes Presented to CC on 2/7/2023 
 

13. Adjournment: 7:35 p.m. 
 
APPROVED this 7th day of February 2023 by a vote of ___ in favor___ against, ___ abstaining, and 
___ absent. 
 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO 

 
ATTEST: 
By  

 
 ___________________________________  
Deputy City Clerk 



C
it

y 
of

 L
ea

dv
il

le
20

22
R

ET
R

O
SP

EC
TI

V
E



“I
t i

s t
he

 m
ar

k 
of

 a
 g

oo
d 

ac
ti

on
 th

at
 it

 a
pp

ea
rs

 in
ev

it
ab

le
 in

 
re

tr
os

pe
ct

.”
Ro

be
rt

 L
ou

is
 S

te
ve

ns
on



K
ey

 C
it

y 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t F
un

ct
io

ns

1. 
Pr

ov
id

in
g 

es
se

nt
ia

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
(“

ke
ep

in
g 

th
e 

w
he

el
s o

n 
th

e 
bu

s”
)

2.
 P

re
se

rv
in

g 
an

d 
ho

no
ri

ng
 o

ur
 p

as
t (

“o
ur

 h
is

to
ry

 is
 k

ey
 to

 o
ur

 
ec

on
om

y”
)

3.
 P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 fu

tu
re

 (“
th

e 
m

ou
nt

ai
n 

to
w

n 
th

at
 g

ot
 it

 ri
gh

t”
)



Pr
ov

id
in

g 
Es

se
nt

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s

•T
ho

m
as

 Je
ffe

rs
on

 e
nu

nc
ia

te
d 

th
e 

ba
si

c 
pr

in
ci

pl
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

:
“P

ub
lic

 se
rv

ic
e 

is
 a

 p
ub

lic
 tr

us
t.”

•E
ve

ry
 d

ay
, C

it
y 

of
 L

ea
dv

ill
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s p
ro

vi
de

 th
at

 p
ub

lic
 tr

us
t.

•E
ve

ry
 d

ay
, C

it
y 

of
 L

ea
dv

ill
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r t

he
 h

ea
lth

, 
sa

fe
ty

 a
nd

 w
el

fa
re

 o
f o

ur
 c

it
iz

en
s.



Pr
ov

id
in

g 
Es

se
nt

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s

•
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

•
A

ni
m

al
 S

he
lte

r

•
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

•
M

un
ic

ip
al

 C
ou

rt

•
Pl

an
ni

ng
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

•
Po

lic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

•
St

re
et

s D
ep

ar
tm

en
t



A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

•E
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 a

ll 
th

e 
ot

he
r d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 c

an
 d

o 
th

ei
r j

ob
s

•M
an

ag
in

g 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
ti

ng
 th

e 
bu

dg
et

•P
ay

in
g 

th
e 

bi
lls

•K
ee

pi
ng

 th
e 

lig
ht

s o
n 

at
 C

ity
 H

al
l



A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

Pe
rm

it
s

•
12

3 
ex

ca
va

tio
n

pe
rm

its
 is

su
ed

 in
 2

02
2 

ve
rs

us
 19

0 
in

 2
02

1.
•

18
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 u
se

 p
er

m
its

 is
su

ed
 in

 2
02

2 
(s

am
e 

as
 2

02
1)

.
•

11 
si

gn
 p

er
m

its
 is

su
ed

 in
 2

02
2 

ve
rs

us
 se

ve
n 

in
 2

02
1.

•
Tw

o
fil

m
in

g 
pe

rm
its

 is
su

ed
 in

 2
02

2 
ve

rs
us

 o
ne

 in
 2

02
1.

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

s 
of

 A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ne
ss

•
11 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
s o

f a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ne
ss

 p
ro

ce
ss

ed
 in

 2
02

2 
ve

rs
us

 2
1 i

n 
20

21
.

Li
ce

ns
es

•
38

3 
bu

si
ne

ss
 li

ce
ns

es
 is

su
ed

 in
 2

02
2 

(i
nc

lu
di

ng
 18

 te
m

po
ra

ry
).

•
17

0 
sh

or
t-

te
rm

 re
nt

al
 li

ce
ns

es
 is

su
ed

 in
 2

02
2.



A
ni

m
al

 S
he

lte
r

•
119

 A
do

pt
io

ns
 (t

ha
t’s

 o
ne

 a
do

pt
io

n 
ab

ou
t e

ve
ry

 th
re

e 
da

ys
!)

•
37

 S
ur

re
nd

er
s

•
94

 C
it

y 
Im

po
un

ds
•

13
0 

C
ou

nt
y 

Im
po

un
ds

•
16

1 R
et

ur
ne

d 
to

 O
w

ne
r

•
> 

$4
,0

00
 D

on
at

io
ns

•
$1

0,
00

0 
G

ra
nt

s
•

C
ou

nt
le

ss
 s

m
ile

s,
pu

pp
y 

ki
ss

es
,a

nd
 

pu
rr

s



A
ni

m
al

 S
he

lte
r

Th
e 

A
ni

m
al

 S
he

lte
r b

ro
ug

ht
 o

n 
a 

ne
w

 a
ss

is
ta

nt
 m

an
ag

er
 –

Je
nn

a 
G

el
dr

ei
ch

.



A
ni

m
al

 S
he

lte
r

Th
e 

A
ni

m
al

 S
he

lte
r a

ls
o 

br
ou

gh
t o

n 
ne

w
 k

en
ne

l t
ec

hs
 a

nd
 is

 n
ow

 fu
lly

 s
ta

ffe
d!



Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

"R
ed

uc
in

g 
C

om
m

un
it

y 
Ri

sk
 T

hr
ou

gh
 E

xc
el

le
nc

e 
in

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

"



Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t



Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

•N
um

be
r o

f i
nc

id
en

ts
 in

 2
02

2 
to

ta
le

d 
92

3 
ve

rs
us

 1,
00

7 
in

 2
02

1. 

•
Fo

r r
ef

er
en

ce
, t

ha
t’s

 a
bo

ut
 1 

ca
ll 

fo
r e

ve
ry

 th
re

e 
pe

rm
an

en
t r

es
id

en
ts

.
•

(D
ue

 to
 N

FI
RS

 re
po

rt
in

g 
ch

an
ge

s a
nd

 R
M

S 
so

ft
w

ar
e,

 s
om

e 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 re
co

rd
ed

 in
ci

de
nt

 
ty

pe
s a

re
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 re
co

rd
ed

 a
s 

in
ci

de
nt

s,
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
fo

r a
 p

or
ti

on
 o

f t
he

 d
ec

re
as

e.
)

•
A

ut
o 

ac
ci

de
nt

s a
re

 th
e 

re
cu

rr
in

g
em

er
ge

nc
y 

th
at

 w
e 

ar
e 

se
ei

ng
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 y
ea

r o
ve

r y
ea

r. 
Th

is
 

m
ay

 b
e 

du
e 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

to
ur

is
m

, a
nd

 o
ur

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

th
at

 c
om

m
ut

es
 to

 w
or

k 
el

se
w

he
re

.

1-
Re

sc
ue

 a
nd

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

M
ed

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s I
nc

id
en

t 
•

49
8

= 
53

.9
5%

2 
-S

er
vi

ce
 C

al
ls

 
•

13
0 

=
14

.0
8%

3 
-H

az
ar

do
us

 C
on

di
ti

on
 (n

o 
fir

e)
 

•
10

0
= 

10
.8

3%



Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

•
Ty

pe
 II

I W
ild

la
nd

 U
rb

an
 In

te
rf

ac
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

or
de

re
d 

an
d 

is
 in

 th
e 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
ri

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
. T

hi
s i

s t
o 

re
pl

ac
e 

a 
Ty

pe
 V

I 
en

gi
ne

 th
at

 w
as

 s
ol

d 
in

 y
ea

r 2
01

5.

•
Ty

pe
 I 

Sp
ar

ta
n 

en
gi

ne
 w

as
 o

rd
er

ed
 a

nd
 is

 in
 th

e 
m

an
uf

ac
tu

ri
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

. W
e 

w
ill

 re
ce

iv
e 

th
is

 in
 2

02
3.

•
Fi

rs
t y

ea
r o

f t
he

 S
A

FE
R 

gr
an

t (
St

af
fin

g 
A

de
qu

at
e 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Re

sp
on

se
) i

n 
am

ou
nt

 o
f $

59
5,

02
7.

90
. T

hi
s 

fu
nd

in
g 

is
 

su
pp

or
ti

ng
 s

al
ar

y 
an

d 
be

ne
fit

s t
ha

t h
ir

ed
 th

e 
4t

h 
pe

rs
on

 o
n 

th
e 

en
gi

ne
 c

om
pa

ny
.

•
Aw

ar
de

d 
th

e 
A

FG
 g

ra
nt

 (A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

to
 F

ir
ef

ig
ht

er
s G

ra
nt

) i
n 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f $
73

,3
25

.0
0.

 T
hi

s f
un

di
ng

 in
st

al
le

d 
th

e 
ex

ha
us

t r
em

ov
al

 s
ys

te
m

 fo
r s

ta
ti

on
 II

 th
at

 w
ill

 re
m

ov
e 

ca
rc

in
og

en
ic

 to
xi

ns
 c

re
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ex

ha
us

t f
ro

m
 d

ie
se

l 
en

gi
ne

s.

•
Aw

ar
de

d 
th

e 
V

FA
 g

ra
nt

 (V
ol

un
te

er
 F

ir
ef

ig
ht

er
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e)
 in

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f $
10

,0
08

.2
5.

 T
hi

s f
un

di
ng

 p
ur

ch
as

ed
 tw

o 
BK

 w
ild

la
nd

 fi
re

fig
ht

in
g 

ra
di

os
.

•
H

ou
se

 B
ill

 11
94

 g
ra

nt
 w

as
 a

w
ar

de
d 

in
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f $

14
,7

19
.0

8 
fo

r f
iv

e 
se

ts
 o

f b
un

ke
r g

ea
r.

•
Th

e 
C

W
PP

, (
C

om
m

un
it

y 
W

ild
fir

e 
Pr

ot
ec

ti
on

 P
la

n)
 w

as
 a

do
pt

ed
 to

 c
on

ti
nu

e 
w

ild
la

nd
 m

it
ig

at
io

n 
ef

fo
rt

s 
in

 L
ak

e 
C

ou
nt

y.

•
H

TC
, (

H
ea

dw
at

er
s T

ra
in

in
g 

Fa
ci

lit
y)

, t
w

o 
sh

ip
pi

ng
 c

on
ta

in
er

s w
er

e 
bu

ilt
 o

ut
 a

s a
 tw

o-
be

dr
oo

m
 h

om
e 

fo
r t

ra
in

in
g 

pu
rp

os
es

.

•
St

at
io

n 
II

, M
ul

ti
 U

se
 F

ac
ili

ty
, t

o 
se

rv
e 

al
l o

f L
ak

e 
C

ou
nt

y,
 h

as
 h

ad
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t p
ro

gr
es

s t
hi

s y
ea

r a
nd

 w
ill

 o
pe

n 
in

 2
02

3.

•
15

 c
ad

et
s g

ra
du

at
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

C
M

C
/L

LC
FR

 fi
re

 a
ca

de
m

y 
an

d 
w

e 
ar

e 
an

ti
ci

pa
ti

ng
 fi

ve
 to

 jo
in

 o
ur

 re
si

de
nt

/r
es

er
ve

 
pr

og
ra

m
.



M
un

ic
ip

al
 C

ou
rt

•
Re

fin
in

g 
fil

in
g 

sy
st

em
s a

nd
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

us
e 

of
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
do

cu
m

en
ts

.

•
C

le
ar

in
g 

ou
t t

he
 b

ac
kl

og
 o

f o
ld

er
 c

as
es

 a
nd

 c
re

at
in

g 
a 

w
ay

 to
 tr

ac
k 

re
st

it
ut

io
n 

an
d 

fin
es

 fo
r f

ol
lo

w
 u

p.

•
U

pd
at

in
g 

an
d 

tr
an

sl
at

in
g 

co
ur

t f
or

m
s 

in
to

 S
pa

ni
sh

.

•
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 th

e 
fl

ow
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
Le

ad
vi

lle
 P

D
 a

nd
 C

ou
rt

.

•
M

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 u

pd
at

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 

C
ou

rt
 w

eb
si

te
 a

nd
 a

dd
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
 li

nk
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
Zo

om
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 s

o 
th

at
 c

ou
rt

 s
es

si
on

s 
re

m
ai

n 
“o

pe
n”

 to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

.

•
W

or
ki

ng
 w

it
h 

th
e 

C
it

y 
A

tt
or

ne
y 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

it
y 

Se
rv

ic
e 

O
ff

ic
er

s o
n 

up
da

te
s 

to
 th

e 
M

od
el

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
od

e 
an

d 
A

ni
m

al
 C

on
tr

ol
 o

rd
in

an
ce

s a
s a

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

it
y 

of
 L

ea
dv

ill
e.

•
Br

ou
gh

t t
he

 M
un

ic
ip

al
 C

ou
rt

 C
le

rk
 p

os
it

io
n 

ba
ck

 to
 

th
e 

ci
ty

 s
ta

ff
 to

 h
el

p 
cr

ea
te

 st
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 h
ir

ed
 a

 n
ew

 
cl

er
k.



Pl
an

ni
ng

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

Fo
r t

he
 fi

rs
t t

im
e 

si
nc

e 
it

s i
nc

or
po

ra
ti

on
 in

 18
78

, 
th

e 
ci

ty
 h

as
 a

n 
of

fic
ia

l P
la

nn
in

g 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t! 



Pl
an

ni
ng

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

•
55

 c
it

y 
bu

ild
in

g 
pe

rm
it

s w
er

e 
is

su
ed

 in
 2

02
2

•
Th

is
 is

 3
7%

 d
ec

re
as

e 
fr

om
 2

02
1. 

(8
8 

bu
ild

in
g 

pe
rm

it
s w

er
e 

is
su

ed
 in

 
20

21
.) 

Th
e 

m
aj

or
it

y
of

 R
ai

ly
ar

d 
Ph

as
e 

1 p
er

m
it

s w
er

e 
is

su
ed

 in
 2

02
1 

w
hi

ch
 a

cc
ou

nt
s f

or
 th

e 
de

cr
ea

se
 in

 2
02

2.

•
Se

ve
n 

C
on

di
ti

on
al

 U
se

 P
er

m
it

s w
er

e 
is

su
ed

 in
 2

02
2.

•
Th

is
 is

 a
 6

3%
 d

ec
re

as
e 

fr
om

 2
02

1 (
19

 C
U

Ps
 w

er
e 

is
su

ed
 in

 2
02

1.)
 T

he
 

la
ck

 o
f s

ho
rt

-t
er

m
 re

nt
al

 li
ce

ns
e 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

ac
co

un
ts

 fo
r d

ec
re

as
e 

in
 

20
22

.



Po
lic

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

•
Th

e 
Po

lic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t s

en
t f

ou
r n

ew
 

re
cr

ui
ts

 to
 th

e 
ac

ad
em

y 
w

ho
 a

ll 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 g

ra
du

at
ed

 a
nd

 jo
in

ed
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t i
n 

20
22

.  

•
Th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t a
ls

o 
hi

re
d 

a 
ne

w
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
y 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

or
.  

•
A

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f 2

02
2,

 a
ll 

Po
lic

e 
O

ff
ic

er
s 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

it
y 

Se
rv

ic
e 

O
ff

ic
er

s w
er

e 
ac

tiv
el

y 
pa

tr
ol

lin
g 

an
d 

ca
ri

ng
 fo

r o
ur

 
co

m
m

un
it

y.



Po
lic

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

To
ta

l c
al

ls
 fo

r s
er

vi
ce

 in
 th

e 
ci

ty
:

•2
02

0 
= 

4,
14

7

•2
02

1 =
 3

,5
58

•2
02

2 
= 

3,
48

9



Po
lic

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

To
p 

th
re

e 
ca

ll 
ty

pe
s 

fo
r s

er
vi

ce
 

w
ith

in
 c

ity
 li

m
its

 fo
r 2

02
2

•P
ar

ki
ng

 p
ro

bl
em

 -
28

7
•B

us
in

es
s 

C
he

ck
 -

22
8

•I
nf

or
m

at
io

na
l -

26
1



St
re

et
s D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

•
Sn

ow
 re

m
ov

al
 =

 2
54

9 
ho

ur
s

•
Sn

ow
 p

lo
w

in
g 

= 
59

3 
ho

ur
s

•
Ro

ad
 S

an
di

ng
 =

 9
0 

ho
ur

s
•

Tr
as

h 
pi

ck
 u

p 
on

 H
ar

ri
so

n 
Av

e 
= 

88
8 

ho
ur

s
•

Sp
ec

ia
l E

ve
nt

s =
 3

64
 h

ou
rs

•
In

 K
in

d 
H

el
p 

= 
31

9 
ho

ur
s



St
re

et
s D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

•I
n 

20
22

, t
he

 c
it

y 
w

as
 a

bl
e 

to
 p

av
e 

11 
bl

oc
ks

 u
si

ng
 th

e 
pa

vi
ng

 b
ud

ge
t 

th
at

 h
ad

 a
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 o
ve

r t
he

 la
st

 fe
w

 y
ea

rs
. 

•T
he

 S
tr

ee
ts

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t c

oo
rd

in
at

ed
, a

ss
is

te
d 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

pa
vi

ng
 o

n 
Pi

ne
 st

re
et

 fr
om

 W
es

t 3
rd

 to
 W

es
t 8

th
 s

tr
ee

t, 
W

es
t 6

th
 

St
re

et
 fr

om
 H

ar
ri

so
n 

Av
en

ue
 to

 Ja
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
an

d 
Ea

st
 2

nd
 S

tr
ee

t 
fr

om
 T

ol
ed

o 
to

 A
ld

er
.

•T
he

se
 p

ro
je

ct
s r

eq
ui

re
d 

th
e 

cr
ew

 to
 d

o 
ev

er
yt

hi
ng

 fr
om

 
ex

ca
va

ti
on

, h
au

lin
g 

ro
ad

 b
as

e 
an

d 
do

in
g 

th
e 

gr
ad

in
g

an
d 

fin
al

 
ro

ad
 g

ra
de

 fo
r p

av
in

g.



St
re

et
s D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

•I
n 

20
22

, t
he

 c
it

y 
hi

re
d 

a 
ne

w
 S

tr
ee

ts
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t m
an

ag
er

 a
nd

 
ad

de
d 

an
 a

dd
it

io
na

l o
pe

ra
to

r. 
•T

he
 S

tr
ee

ts
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t i
s 

no
w

 fu
lly

 s
ta

ffe
d 

fo
r t

he
 fi

rs
t t

im
e 

in
 

ab
ou

t a
 y

ea
r.

•I
n 

20
22

, t
he

 S
tr

ee
ts

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

dd
ed

 a
 n

ew
 g

ra
de

r a
nd

 a
 n

ew
 

st
re

et
 s

w
ee

pe
r.

•I
n 

ad
di

ti
on

, t
he

 c
re

w
 is

 le
ar

ni
ng

 h
ow

 to
 u

se
 th

e 
ne

w
 u

-b
la

de
s 

w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

be
en

 v
er

y 
he

lp
fu

l



Pr
es

er
vi

ng
 a

nd
 H

on
or

in
g 

ou
r P

as
t

•
Th

e 
Ta

bo
r O

pe
ra

 H
ou

se
 -

In
 2

02
2,

 o
ve

r 1
80

0 
pe

op
le

 c
om

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
do

or
s t

o 
ta

ke
 

to
ur

s.
 T

he
 so

ut
h 

w
al

l g
ho

st
 s

ig
n 

w
as

 b
ea

ut
ifu

lly
 p

re
se

rv
ed

 fo
r g

en
er

at
io

ns
 to

 c
om

e.
 P

ha
se

 II
 o

f t
he

 
ex

te
ri

or
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

re
ha

bi
lit

at
io

n 
la

un
ch

ed
 w

it
h 

re
pa

ir
s t

o 
th

e 
m

as
on

ry
 o

n 
th

e 
ea

st
 e

le
va

ti
on

. S
ta

ge
 

ri
gg

in
g 

up
gr

ad
es

 w
er

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

. A
n 

ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
di

re
ct

or
 w

as
 h

ir
ed

 a
nd

 h
it 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd
 ru

nn
in

g 
in

 
M

ay
.

•
Th

e 
Ta

bo
r H

om
e 

be
ca

m
e 

th
e 

ne
w

 h
om

e 
fo

r t
he

 L
ea

dv
ill

e 
La

ke
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

om
m

un
it

y 
Fu

nd
.

•
Th

e 
H

ou
se

 w
it

h 
th

e 
Ey

e 
w

as
 g

ift
ed

 to
 th

e 
ci

ty
 fr

om
 N

ei
l R

ey
no

ld
’s 

es
ta

te
. T

he
 c

it
y 

re
-o

pe
ne

d 
it 

as
 

on
e 

of
 L

ea
dv

ill
e’

s e
ig

ht
 m

us
eu

m
s a

nd
 h

os
te

d 
80

0 
vi

si
to

rs
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
su

m
m

er
.

•
Th

e 
C

it
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

pa
ss

ed
 a

 fo
rm

 b
as

ed
 b

us
in

es
s o

ve
rl

ay
 to

 p
re

se
rv

e 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r o

f o
ur

 d
ow

nt
ow

n 
co

re
.

•
Th

e 
Le

ad
vi

lle
 M

ai
n 

St
re

et
 p

ro
gr

am
 st

re
ng

th
en

ed
 o

ur
 c

om
m

un
it

y 
co

nn
ec

ti
on

 th
ro

ug
h 

hi
st

or
ic

 
pr

es
er

va
ti

on
, b

ea
ut

ifi
ca

ti
on

 a
nd

 th
e 

ac
tiv

at
io

n 
of

 p
ub

lic
 s

pa
ce

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 a
 th

ri
vi

ng
 d

ow
nt

ow
n.

 
Th

is
 in

cl
ud

ed
 p

ub
lic

 m
us

ic
 a

nd
 fl

ow
er

 b
ox

es
 in

 th
e 

su
m

m
er

 a
nd

 c
on

ti
nu

ed
 p

ro
gr

es
s o

n 
th

e 
ne

w
 

pa
rk

le
t/

re
st

ro
om

 a
m

on
g 

ot
he

r p
ro

je
ct

s 
be

ne
fit

ti
ng

 th
e 

ci
ty

.



Pr
es

er
vi

ng
 a

nd
 H

on
or

in
g 

ou
r P

as
t

C
am

p 
H

al
e 

w
as

 d
ec

la
re

d 
a 

N
at

io
na

l M
on

um
en

t b
y 

Pr
es

id
en

t B
id

en
 a

nd
 a

 c
on

tin
ge

nt
 fr

om
 

Le
ad

vi
lle

/L
ak

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
w

as
 in

vi
te

d 
to

 a
tt

en
d 

th
e 

de
di

ca
tio

n.



Pl
an

ni
ng

 fo
r t

he
 F

ut
ur

e

•E
m

pl
oy

ee
 R

et
en

tio
n

•H
ou

si
ng



Em
pl

oy
ee

 R
et

en
tio

n

•
Th

e 
C

it
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 $

26
4,

00
0 

of
 th

e 
ci

ty
’s 

A
RP

A
 fu

nd
s f

or
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 
re

te
nt

io
n.

 O
f t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s t
ha

t r
ec

ei
ve

d 
th

is
 re

te
nt

io
n 

bo
nu

s t
hi

s s
um

m
er

, 
95

%
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

w
it

h 
th

e 
ci

ty
. (

O
ne

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 le

ft
 a

nd
 o

ne
 re

ti
re

d.
)

•
Th

e 
C

it
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

su
pp

or
te

d 
it

s e
m

pl
oy

ee
s b

y 
ch

oo
si

ng
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 10
0%

 
co

ve
ra

ge
 o

f t
he

 F
A

M
LI

 p
re

m
iu

m
s f

or
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s t
ha

t o
pt

 in
 to

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

.
•

Th
e 

C
it

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

 4
%

 c
os

t o
f l

iv
in

g 
in

cr
ea

se
 fo

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
s e

ar
ni

ng
 

ab
ov

e 
$5

9,
00

0 
an

d 
a 

5%
 c

os
t o

f l
iv

in
g 

in
cr

ea
se

 fo
r e

m
pl

oy
ee

s e
ar

ni
ng

 $
40

,0
00

 
-$

59
,0

00
.

•
Th

e 
C

it
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 th

e 
cr

ea
ti

on
 o

f a
 H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

po
si

ti
on

 a
nd

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
cr

ea
ti

on
 o

f a
 w

el
ln

es
s p

ro
gr

am
.



H
ou

si
ng

•
Th

e 
ci

ty
 to

ok
 s

ho
rt

, m
ed

iu
m

 a
nd

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 st
ep

s t
o 

ad
dr

es
s t

he
 la

ck
 o

f 
ho

us
in

g 
in

 o
ur

 c
om

m
un

it
y.

•
Th

e 
ci

ty
 c

re
at

ed
 im

m
ed

ia
te

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
it

h 
th

e 
ac

qu
is

it
io

n 
of

 th
e 

80
9 

Sp
ru

ce
 

St
re

et
 H

ou
se

 w
hi

ch
 to

ok
 v

ac
at

io
n 

re
nt

al
 s

to
ck

 a
nd

 c
on

ve
rt

ed
 it

 to
 h

ou
si

ng
 

st
oc

k.



H
ou

si
ng

•I
n 

20
22

, t
he

 c
it

y 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
an

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
ns

 ta
x 

to
 h

el
p 

fu
nd

 th
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 H
ou

si
ng

 D
ir

ec
to

r a
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
w

ar
ds

 
ho

us
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
•T

he
 c

it
y 

pl
an

ne
d 

fo
r h

ou
si

ng
 w

it
h 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 L
ea

dv
ill

e 
U

rb
an

 R
en

ew
al

 A
ut

ho
ri

ty
 (L

U
RA

) p
ar

ce
l a

t t
he

 R
ai

ly
ar

ds
.

•T
he

 c
it

y 
al

so
 fu

nd
ed

 h
ou

si
ng

 e
ffo

rt
s w

it
h 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
om

m
it

m
en

ts
 

fo
r t

he
 R

eg
io

na
l H

ou
si

ng
 D

ir
ec

to
r a

nd
 to

 th
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 H
ou

si
ng

 
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

.



Th
an

k 
yo

u 
to

 th
e 

al
l t

he
 c

it
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
 

C
it

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
ci

ty
 p

ar
tn

er
s

fo
r y

ou
r h

ar
d 

w
or

k 
in

 2
02

2



Q
ue

st
io

ns
?

ci
ty

ad
m

in
@

le
ad

vi
lle

-c
o.

go
v

Ci
ty

 o
f L

ea
dv

ill
e

La
ur

ie
 S

im
on

so
n

Ci
ty

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

or
*

80
0 

Ha
rr

is
on

 A
ve

Le
ad

vi
lle

, C
O 

 8
04

61
71

9-
42

7-
01

54

(*
O

h 
ye

ah
, t

ha
t’s

 ri
gh

t, 
yo

u 
al

so
 h

ir
ed

 m
e 

th
is

 y
ea

r!
)



Page 1 of 2 
 

   

AGENDA ITEM #8B 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 

MEETING DATE: February 07, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 3, Series of 2023: A Resolution Adopting an Updated Fee Schedule for 

the City of Leadville   
 

PRESENTED BY: Laurie Simonson, City Administrator  
 

 _____ORDINANCE 
 __X__RESOLUTION 
 _____MOTION 
 _____INFORMATION    
                                                                                                      

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE: 

Before the City Council for consideration is Resolution No. 3, Series of 2023 (“Resolution”) - a 
resolution adopting an updated fee schedule for the city.  

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

Fees are charges imposed for the purpose of defraying the cost of a particular government 
service. Fees and charges are designed to defer the cost of current services that benefit the 
recipient or off-set the burdens of regulation. (The Colorado Supreme Court has emphasized that 
the primary difference between a tax and a fee is that a tax is a general revenue raising measure 
while a fee defrays the cost of a particular government service.) 

Common types of municipal fees are inspection fees; licensing fees; permitting fees and servicing 
fees. While the fee must be reasonably related to the overall cost of the service, mathematical 
exactitude is not required; in fact, user fees rarely cover the entire cost of the service provided. 
Rather, the fee is charged to ensure that at least some portion of the cost of providing the service 
is borne by the recipient of the service rather than the taxpayers at large. As with other kinds of 
fees, however, the amount of revenue generated by user fees cannot exceed the overall direct 
and indirect costs of the services provided.  

The City adopted a master fee schedule in January of 2022. Municipalities regularly review 
charges and fees as a legislative or budgetary process. Responsible municipal fiscal management 
dictates reviewing the city’s fees ideally on an annual basis.  

This Resolution includes an updated fee schedule for the City. (Included as Exhibit 1.) In 
preparation for presenting this updated fee schedule, I asked each city department to evaluate 



Page 2 of 2 
 

their existing fees against actual costs and other communities with similar fees to determine if 
the city’s current fees were accurate. Second, I asked each department to determine if the city 
was providing a service for which a fee was appropriate and to again analyze whether similar 
communities charged a fee for that service and if so, what was the amount of the fee. Several 
departmental memos accompany this Council Communication Form which outline the reason for 
certain fee changes. Additionally, staff will be present to answer questions regarding any fee 
changes at the meeting.  

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

N/A 

V. LEGAL ISSUES:   

Fees adopted by the City must be reasonably related to the actual costs of the City in administering 
permits, licenses, or providing services. 

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 3, Series of 2023. 

VII. COUNCIL OPTIONS: 

Council may take one of the following actions: 

1. Adopt the Resolution. 

2. Adopt the Resolution with amendments. 

3. Table for further discussion and consideration. 

VIII. PROPOSED MOTION:  

“I move to adopt Resolution No. 3, Series of 2023, A Resolution Adopting an Updated Fee Schedule 
for the City of Leadville.” 

IX. ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution No. 3, Series of 2023 
Exhibit 1 - City of Leadville Fee Schedule 
Departmental Memos 



 
 
 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO. 3 

SERIES OF 2023 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN UPDATED FEE SCHEDULE  
FOR THE CITY OF LEADVILLE 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leadville (“City”) is authorized under Article 15 of Title 31 of 
the Colorado Revised Statutes to exercise its general police and financial powers; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such powers include but are not limited to the ability to impose and collect 
fees for the processing of licenses and applications, the performance of other administrative 
services, and collection of fines and fees for violations of the Leadville Municipal Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Leadville Municipal Code authorizes certain fees to be adopted by 
resolution of the City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Leadville City Council hereby determines that the fees established by this 
Resolution and set forth in the City’s Fee Schedule, attached as Exhibit 1, are reasonable and are 
below or directly proportional to the actual and necessary expenses incurred by the City in 
processing the specified liquor license applications, marijuana licensing applications, 
administrative and zoning applications, police department services, animal shelter service, short-
term rental license applications, business license applications, excavation permit applications, 
encroachment permit applications, and records requests and are consistent with state law. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Comprehensive Fee Schedule Adopted. The City Council hereby: (a) 
adopts the City of Leadville Fee Schedule (“Fee Schedule”), attached as Exhibit 1; and (b) directs 
City staff to cause a copy of the Fee Schedule to be uploaded to the City’s website and make a 
copy available for public inspection in the office of the deputy city clerk. 

  
Section 2. Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 

resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the 
remaining issues of this resolution. 

 
Section 3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective upon adoption.  

 
ADOPTED this 7th day of February 2023 by a vote of  __ in favor, ___ against,  

__ abstaining, __ absent. 
 
 
 



City of Leadville 
  Resolution No. 3 
  Series of 2023 

Page 2 
 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 
 

 
 

By: _______________________________  
 Greg Labbe, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
  Deputy City Clerk 
  



City of Leadville 
  Resolution No. 3 
  Series of 2023 

Page 3 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 
 

(see attached) 
 

  



City of Leadville 
  Resolution No. 3 
  Series of 2023 

Page 4 
 
 
 

CITY	OF	LEADVILLE,	COLORADO	
FEE	SCHEDULE	

	
EXHIBIT	A	

LIQUOR	LICENSE	FEES	
	

Application Fees Local Fee 
Application Fee for a New License (DR 8404, DR 8403) $1000.00 
Application Fee for a New License with Concurrent Review (DR 8404, DR 8403) $1000.00 
Application Fee Transfer of Ownership (DR 8404, DR 8403) $750.00 
Application Fee Additional Liquor-Licensed Drugstore (DR 8001) $1000.00 
Application Fee Additional Liquor-Licensed Drugstore with Concurrent Review (DR 8001) $1000.00 
Application Late Renewal Fee (DR 8408) $500.00 
  (There is a mandatory fine of $500.00 plus $25/day for each day after the 90th day of expirationNot more than 90-days of 
license expiration date) 

Application Reissue Fee (DR 8407) $500.00 
  (There is a mandatory fine of $500.00 plus $25/day for each day after the 90th day of expiration.More than 90 days but less 
than 180 days of license expiration) 

Application Reissue Fine $25.00/day 
  (More than 90-days but less than 180-days of license expiration date) 

Annual Renewal Application Fee (DR 8400) $100.00 
Late Annual Renewal Application (DR 8400) $50.00 
Annual Art Gallery Application Fee (DR 8443) $100.00 
 
Retail License Fees (DR 8404, DR 8400, DR 8403) Local Fee 
Art $41.25 
Beer & Wine $48.75 
Brew Pub $75.00 
Club $41.25 
Distillery Pub $75.00 
Hotel & Restaurant $75.00 
  Hotel restaurant with one Optional Premises $75.00 
  Each Additional OP License $75.00 
  Resort Complex $75.00 
  Campus Liquor Complex $75.00 
  Related Facility – Resort Complex $15.00 
  Related Facility – Campus Liquor Complex $15.00 
Liquor-Licensed Drugstore $22.50 
Lodging & Entertainment $75.00 
Optional Premises (sidewalk service areas / modifications) (DR 8442) $75.00 
Racetrack $75.00 
Retail Gaming Tavern $75.00 
Retail Liquor Store $22.50 
Tavern $75.00 



City of Leadville 
Resolution No. 3 

Series of 2023 
Page 5 

Vintner’s Restaurant $75.00 
Fermented Malt Beverage On Premises  $3.75 
Fermented Malt Beverage Off Premises  $3.75 
Fermented Malt Beverage On/Off Premises  $3.75 

Permit Fees Local Fee 
Alcohol Beverage Festival Permit Application  (DR 8420) $100.00 
  ($100 per event; 9 total events allowed in 12 months) 

Art Gallery Permit (DR 8443) $3.75 
Bed & Breakfast Permit DR 8447) $3.75 
Delivery Permit Application and Renewal for Off-Premises Retailers (DR 8497) $11.00 
Each Resort-Complex-Related Facility Permit $15.00 
Special Event Permit (DR 8439) $100.00
  (Malt, Vinous and Spirituous Liquor & Fermented Malt Beverage) 

Temporary Permit for a License Transfer Approved by the Local Liquor Licensing Authority $100.00 

Additional Fees Local Fee 
Change of Location (DR 8442) $750.00 
Common Consumption Promotional Association Application  $100.00 
Corporate/LLC Change (per person) (DR 8177) $100.00 
Manager Registration $75.00 
  (Hotel & Restaurant; Tavern; Lodging & Entertainment; Campus Liquor Complex) 

EXHIBIT	B	
MEDICAL	and	RETAIL	MARIJUANA	FEE	SCHEDULE	

Application Fees Local Fee 
Medical New Marijuana Dispensary Store $2500.00
Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facility $2500.00 
Medical Marijuana Products Manufacturer $2500.00 
Medical Marijuana Testing Facility $2500.00 
Medical Marijuana Business Operator $2500.00 
Medical Marijuana Research and Development $2500.00 
Marijuana Hospitality and Sales Business $2500.00 
Annual Dispensary Renewal Application  $1500.00 

License Fees (in addition to application fees and other related fees and permits) 
Medical New Marijuana Dispensary Store $2500.00
Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facility $2500.00 
Medical Marijuana Products Manufacturer $2500.00 
Medical Marijuana Testing Facility $2500.00 
Medical Marijuana Business Operator $2500.00 
Medical Marijuana Research and Development $2500.00 
Duplicate license $100.00 



City of Leadville 
Resolution No. 3 

Series of 2023 
Page 6 

Related Fees and Permits (in addition to application fees and other related fees and permits) Local Fee 
Annual Operations Fee $2000.00 
Transfer of ownership to new entity $1000.00 
Duplicate license $100.00 
Change of location $25001000.00 
Change of trade name $200.00 
Inspection Fee $500.00  
  (inspections by building department; fee assessed for each inspection completed for issuance of new or renewed license) 

Modification of premises $200.00250.00 
Change of ownership/Revisions of Current License makeup of current license $500.001000.00 
Manager registration $75.00 
License renewal $500.00 
Late Renewal Fee $250.00 

EXHIBIT	C	
RETAIL	MARIJUANA	FEE	SCHEDULE	

Application Fees Local Fee 
Retail Marijuana Store $2500.00 (collected by state MED) 
Retail Marijuana Cultivation Facility $2500.00 (collected by state MED) 
Retail Marijuana Products Manufacturer $2500.00 (collected by state MED) 
Retail Marijuana Testing Facility $500.00 (collected by state MED) 
Retail Marijuana Business Operator $500.00 (collected by state MED) 
Marijuana Hospitality Business $500.00 (collected by state MED) 
Retail Marijuana Hospitality and Sales Business $2500.00 (collected by state MED) 

License Fees (in addition to application fees and other related fees and permits) 
Retail Marijuana Store $2500.00 
Retail Marijuana Cultivation Facility $2500.00 
Retail Marijuana Products Manufacturer $2500.00 
Retail Marijuana Testing Facility $2500.00 
Retail Marijuana Business Operator $2500.00 
Marijuana Hospitality Business $2500.00 
Retail Marijuana Hospitality and Sales Business $2500.00 

Related Fees and Permits (in addition to application fees and other related fees and permits) Local Fee 
Operating Fee (all types of retail marijuana licenses) $700.00 
Transfer of ownership to new entity $1000.00 
Duplicate license $100.00 
Change of location $2500.00 
Change of trade name $200.00 
Modification of premises $200.00 
Change of ownership makeup of current license $500.00 
Manager registration   $75.00 
License renewal $500.00 



City of Leadville 
Resolution No. 3 

Series of 2023 
Page 7 

EXHIBIT	C	D	
ZONING	FEE	SCHEDULE	

(fees authorized by provisions of Title 17 of the Leadville Municipal Code, including Section 17.96.020) 

License and Permit Fees Local Fee 
Zoning Text Amendment $175.00 
Zoning Map Amendment $175.00  
Conditional Use Permit $125.00 
Variance Application $125.00 
Sign Permit   $25.00 
Banner Sign Application 10 days-40 days max               $5.00 -$20.00  
Designation/De-Designation of Historic Structure $125.00 
Certificate of Appropriateness $125.00
Temporary Use Permit                 No Charge 
Commercial Animal Establishment (currently dictated in code) $150.00 
Lot Consolidation/Lot Line Adjustment $125.00  
Site Plan Application    $50.00 
Site Plan Administrative Appeal $125.00     
Administrative Application $125.00 
PUD Application $125.00 
Telecommunications Facility Application $125.00 
   (in addition to application fee, applicant pays actual cost of application review per Sec. 17.72.070) 

BOA Appeal Filing Fee $125.00 
Consultant Review Fee Deposit               $1000.00 
  (for applications requiring review by city consultants, including legal, planning, and engineering,  
   applicant pays the actual cost of review in addition to all applicable application and filing fees) 

Application Type Local Fee 
Major Impact Reviews 

Major Site Plan $1,250.00 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) $1,250.00 
Annexation $1,250.00

Limited Impact Reviews 
Conditional Use* $500.00 
Minor Site Plan $500.00 
Certificate of Appropriateness (Substantial Modification) $500.00 
Designation/Revocation of Designation of Historic Structure $500.00 
Zoning Text Amendment $500.00 
Zoning Map Amendment $500.00  
Variance $500.00
Board of Adjustment (BOA) Appeal $500.00 

Administrative Reviews 
Administrative Site Plan* $250.00 
Temporary Use Permit (201 attendees or more) $250.00 



City of Leadville 
Resolution No. 3 

Series of 2023 
Page 8 

Minor Administrative Review 
Site Plan Administrative Appeal $125.00     
Temporary Use Permit (51-200 attendees) $125.00 
Certificate of Appropriateness (Insubstantial Modification)   $75.00 
Temporary Use Permit (50 attendees or less)    $50.00 
Sign   $50.00 
Temporary Sign   $25.00  

Zoning (Ex: Conditional Use, Site Plan) Consultant Review Fee Deposit**  $1,000.00 
*Telecommunications Facility Applications: In addition to application fee, applicant pays actual cost of application review per Sec.
17.72.070.
**For applications requiring review by city consultants, including legal, planning, and engineering, applicant pays the actual cost 
of review in addition to all applicable application and filing fees) 

EXHIBIT	D	E	
SUBDIVISION	FEE	SCHEDULE	

(pursuant to Chapter 16.04 of the Leadville Municipal Code) 

Fees Local Fee 
Application $25.00 
Consultant Review Fee Deposit $2000.00 
Administrative Interpretation/Decision Appeal  $125.00 

Application Type Local Fee 
Major Impact Reviews: 

Major Subdivision $1,250.00 + $50/lot 
Limited Impact Reviews: 

Minor Subdivision $500.00 + $50/lot 
Plat Amendment $500.00 
Plat Vacation $500.00 

Administrative Reviews: 
Lot Consolidation $250.00 
Lot Line Adjustment $250.00  
Townhouse, Condominium and Building Footprint Lot $250.00 
Administrative Interpretation/Decision Appeal  $125.00 

Fees-in-lieu of land dedication (16.40.040): 
 Single Family Dwelling Unit:  [.0151] acre/$[1,032.36] per unit 
 Multi-Family Dwelling Unit: [.0025] acre/$[1,032.36] per unit 
 Mobile Home Park: [.0151] acre/$[636.68] per space 

Consultant Review Fee Deposit $2,000.00 



City of Leadville 
Resolution No. 3 

Series of 2023 
Page 9 

EXHIBIT	E	F	
POLICE	DEPARTMENT	FEE	SCHEDULE	

Fees Local Fee 
Certified VIN Inspection $25.0050.00 

Fingerprinting $30.00
Sex Offender Registration $75.00
Sex Offender Re-Registration $20.00 
Sex Offender updates           No Charge 
Copies/Per Page (Records Requests) $0.25 
Research/Retrieval/Redaction Fee (Records Request) $33.58/hour 
Video Redactions (Records Request) Actual Cost 
Audio/Video Fee/Per CD/DVD/USB (Records Request) $15.00 

EXHIBIT	F	G	
SHORT‐TERM	RENTAL	LICENSING	FEE	SCHEDULE	

License Application Fees Local Fee 
Application Fee for Class 1 license $325.00 
Application Fee for Class 2 license $325.00 
Fire Safety Check Inspection (every 2 years each time) $40.00 

EXHIBIT		G	H	
BUSINESS	LICENSING	FEE	SCHEDULE	

License Application Fees Local Fee 
Annual Application Fee (new or renewing businesses) $50.00 
Application Fee (four-day event business license) $10.00 
Transfer of ownership $50.00 
Late Fee after January 31st $20.00

EXHIBIT	H	I	
EXCAVATION	PERMITTING	FEE	SCHEDULE	

Permit Fees  Local Fee 
Application Fee for Excavation Permit (per block) $250.00 
Application Fee for ROW/Alley Excavation (per block) $100.00 



City of Leadville 
Resolution No. 3 

Series of 2023 
Page 10 

EXHIBIT	I	J	
ENCROACHMENT	PERMIT	FEE	SCHEDULE	

Application Fee  Local Fee 
Application Fee  $150.00 

EXHIBIT	J	K	
RECORDS	REQUEST	FEES*	

(applies to requests for public records that are not criminal justice records) 
Fees  Local Fee 
Hard copies of records  $0.25/page 
Staff research, retrieval and redaction time $33.58/hour (after the first hour) 
CD, DVD or USB of electronic records $10.0015.00 each (to be consistent with Exhibit F) 

Exhibit	K	
Leadville/Lake	County	Fire	Rescue	Fee	Schedule	

Residential (Single and two family residence plan review fee)  $50.00 
Commercial (R-1,R-2,R-3,R-4) $500.00 (5,000 sq. ft.or more) 

$250.00 (4,999 sq. ft. or less) 
Residential Solar Array Plan Review $25.00 
Short-Term Rental Inspections (City) $40.00 
Fire Alarm System Plans with Battery Calculations and Product Info. $400.00 
Device Test During Inspection $2.00/each 
Sprinkler System Test and Acceptance $400.00 
Sprinkler Head Test $2.00/head 
Suppression System (Standpipe System/Building Final) $200.00
Suppression System (Each Additional Riser) $100.00 
Suppression System (Fire Pump) $200.00 
Flow Test on all New Hydrants  $100.00 
Special Events (When Site Inspection is required/otherwise no cost) $100.00 
Commercial Kitchen Hood System (New) $200.00 
False Alarms Per Current Resolution/Ordinance 
Re-Inspections if Occupant Fails to Comply with Safety Regulations $200.00 
Building Department (Building Department Project Valuation Greater Than $50,000)         “Total” Fee x .065  

Base Response Fee by Type of Incident 

Structure Fire $1500.00 
Wildland Fire $1500/property 
Vehicle Fire $250.00 
Emergency Medical Services (Extra-Jurisdictional) $200.00
Fire or Environmental Alarm $150.00 
Service Call $150.00 
Hazardous Materials Response (Extra-Jurisdictional) $250.00



City of Leadville 
Resolution No. 3 

Series of 2023 
Page 11 

Response Apparatus and Command/Staff Fees 

Type I Engine $250.00/hr. 
Type III Engine $220.00/hr. 
Type VI Engine $165.00/hr. 
Heavy Rescue/Hazmat $220.00/hr. 
Water Tender $190.00/hr. 
Aerial Truck $280.00/hr. 
Command/Staff Vehicles $60.00/hr. 

*Pursuant to the City’s CORA policy, a 50% advance deposit must be paid before the City begins processing a records request
that is estimated to cost in excess of $100.00 to complete. A cost estimate showing the City’s estimated costs related to the records
request will be provided to the requester in such cases. Persons requesting records must pay 100% of the applicable costs, if any,
before the City will produce records pursuant to a records request.



ANIMAL SHELTER FEES 

(to be added to City Fee Schedule)  

EXHIBIT	L	
ANIMAL	SHELTER	FEES	

Fees  Local Fee 
Impoundment Fee  $20.00/day 

+ $20 Admin. Fee
License Fees for Spayed/Neutered Animals 

1-Year License $15.00 
3-Year License $40.00 

License Fees for Animals Not Spayed/Neutered 
1-Year License $40.00 
3-Year License $100.00 

Adoption Fees (not including vet fees) $50.00 + vet fees 
      Small Dogs and Puppies $300.00 
      Adult Dogs $50.00-$200.00 
      Purebred $300.00 
Spay/Neuter Deposit (in addition to adoption fee) $50.00$100.00 
Surrender Fees (may be reduced or waived at discretion of animal shelter manager) 

Spayed/Neutered, Vaccinated $50.00$25.00 
Spayed/Neutered, Not Vaccinated $75.00$50.00 
Not Spayed/Neutered, Vaccinated $100.00 
Not Spayed/Neutered, Not Vaccinated $150.00 

Microchips 
      Public     $20.00 
      RTO   $10.00 

Shelter Staff $5.00 

City of Leadville 
Resolution No. 3 

Series of 2023 
Page 12



1 

MEMO
______ 

TO:   Mayor Labbe and City Council 

FROM: Chapin LaChance, Planning Director 

MEETING DATE: February 7, 2023 

SUBJECT: Planning Dept. Fee Increase 

Mayor Labbe and City Council, 

The Planning Dept. requests the Council’s consideration of amendments to the Community Development and Planning 
application fees. 

Intent 
The intent of these proposed amendments are as follows: 

1. Anticipate the projected cost of processing applications for proposed land use changes and ensure that the costs
to the City of processing and reviewing applications for land development approval is fairly borne by the applicants
for such approval. The high majority of the costs are currently borne by the City.

2. Ensure that the City’s fees are comparable to those of other regional local governments.
3. Re-categorize fee schedule based on applications which require 1) public hearings. and 2) administrative approval.
4. Realign the application fees to reflect the cost of employing a Planning Director, now that the City is expected to

infrequently use third party planning consultants to review development applications.
a. For example, prior to the hiring of a Planning Director, a developer of a project which required both a

Conditional Use Permit application and a Plat application would have paid a minimum of $3,250,
consisting of the $2,000 Subdivision Consultant Review Fee Deposit, $1,000 Zoning Consultant Review Fee
Deposit, $125 Conditional Use Permit application fee, and $125 Subdivision application, plus any
additional hourly consultant fees incurred. Currently, the Planning Director processes all applications, so
this same scenario would result in an application fee of only $250 to the developer.

5. Incorporate already codified fees-in-lieu.

Current Fee Schedule: 
$2,000: Subdivision Consultant Review Fee Deposit 
$1,000: Zoning Consultant Review Fee Deposit 
$175: Zoning text amendment, zoning map amendment 
$150: Commercial Animal Establishment 
$125: 

• Conditional Use Permit
• Variance



2 

• Historic Structure Designation/De-Designation
• Certificate of Appropriateness
• Lot Consolidation
• Lot Line Adjustment
• Site Plan Administrative Appeal
• Administrative Application
• PUD Application
• Telecommunications Facility Application
• Board of Adjustment Appeal Filing Fee
• Subdivision Administrative Interpretation/Decision Appeal

$50: Site Plan 
$25: Subdivision Application, Sign Permit 
$5-$20: Banner Sign  
No Charge: Temporary Use Permit 

Current cost of processing public hearing applications: 
An application which requires public hearings typically necessitates 16 hrs. to 40 hrs. of staff time to evaluate and process, 
depending on the complexity of the application and the number of public hearings. Using a conservative estimate of 20 
hours of staff time per public hearing application, the estimated cost of processing an application per application is 
calculated as follows: 

o Planning Director salary: $39/hr. x 18 hrs. = $702
o 1 public hearing at P&Z or HPC: 5-6 Commissioners x $100/mtg. = $500-$600
o Administrative Assistant salary: public notice, minutes, etc.: $24/hr. x 2 hours= $48
o Total: *$1,250-1,350

 Note: This does not include employee benefits, trainings, taxes, City Attorney consultant time, or
other office and administrative costs.

 * Application processing cost could be up to $3,000 for applications requiring two (2) public hearings.

Comparable local government fee schedules: 
See attached for the 2023 fee schedules of nearby comparable local governments. Staff believes the City of Leadville should 
not exceed the maximum fees for applications which require public hearings of these comparable local governments, which 
are listed below: 

Salida: $1,250 

Buena Vista: $1,000 

Lake County: $1,000 

Proposed Fee Schedule: 
$1,250 (major impact review): 

• Major Site Plan (40 + DU, 25,000 sq. ft. +)
• Major Subdivision: + $50/lot
• Planned Unit Development (PUD)
• Annexation

Note: These require multiple public hearings at Planning and Zoning Commission, City Attorney time, and at least 40 
hours of staff time. 

$500 (limited impact review): 
• Minor Subdivision: + $50/lot



 

3 
 

• Plat Amendment 
• Plat Vacation 
• Conditional Use (CUP) 
• Minor Site Plan (16-40 DU, 10,000 – 25,000 sq. ft.) 
• Certificate of Appropriateness: Substantial Modification* 
• Historic Structure Designation/Revocation of Designation 
• Zoning text amendment 
• Zoning map amendment (re-zoning) 
• Variance 
• Board of Adjustment Appeal 

 
Notes: 
• These applications require 1 public hearing at Planning and Zoning Commission and at least 20 hours of staff time.  
• *Comparable local governments listed above do not have a National Historic Landmark District 

 
$250 (administrative review): 

• Lot Consolidation 
• Lot Line Adjustment 
• Townhouse, Condominium and Building Footprint Lot 
• Administrative Site Plan 
• Temporary Use (201 attendees or more) 

 
$125 (minor administrative review): 

• Site Plan Administrative Appeal 
• Temporary Use (51-200 attendees) 

 
$75 

• Certificate of Appropriateness: Insubstantial Modification 
 

$50 
• Temporary Use (50 attendees or less) 

 
other 

• $50: Sign 
• $25: Temporary Sign  
• $2,000: Subdivision Consultant Review Fee Deposit (Engineering) 
• $1,000: Zoning Consultant Review Fee Deposit 

 
Fees-in-lieu of land dedication (16.40.040) 

• Single Family Dwelling Unit: [.0151] acre/$[1,032.36] per unit 
• Multi-Family Dwelling Unit: [.0025] acre/$[1,032.36] per unit 
• Mobile Home Park: [.0151] acre/$[636.68] per space 

 
 

Questions for the Council 
 

1. Does the Council support the intent for the proposed fee increase stated at the beginning of this memo? 
 

2. Does the Council support staff’s proposed amendments to the Planning Dept. fee schedule? 



























MEMORANDUM 

To: Mayor Labbe and Members of City Council 

From: Caitlin Kuczko, Animal Shelter Manager/Department Head 

Date: February 7th, 2023

Subject: Animal Shelter Fees  

Service Current 
Fee 

New Fee 
Suggestion 

Notes 

Impoundment $20/day $20/day + 

$20 
impound/ 
admin fee 

Summit $50+20/day 
Ark Valley $20 +15/night 
LLCAS fee waived if animal 
is UTD on rabies, license, 
and ID tag/microchipped 

$50 Rabies deposit fee 

Licenses No changes 

1 year S/N $15 All fees match county fees 

3 year S/N $40 

1 year intact $40 

3 year intact $100 

Adoptions $50 + vet 
fee 

$300 Small dogs and puppies 

$50 - 200 Adult dogs 

$100 Kittens 

$50 Adult cats 

S/N deposit $50 $100 (May go away pending 
PACFA ruling) 

Surrenders 

S/N, UTD $50 $25 

S/N, not UTD $75 $50 

Intact, UTD $100 $100 

Intact, not 
UTD 

$150 $150 

Microchips $20 Public 

$10 RTO 

$5 Shelter staff 



  

   

 AGENDA ITEM #8C 
 

 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 

               ______       
MEETING DATE: February 7, 2023   
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 4, Series of 2023: A Resolution Approving a Memorandum of 

Understanding with Lake County, Acting through the Lake County Sheriff’s Office, 
for Services by the Victim Services Unit  

 
PRESENTED BY:  Ken Chavez, Interim Chief of Police 
 

 ____ORDINANCE 
 _X__RESOLUTION 
 _____MOTION 
 _____INFORMATION    
                               ______ 
                                                                                                      

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE: 

Before City Council for consideration is Resolution No. 4, Series of 2023 (“Resolution”), which 
would approve a memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) with Lake County acting through the 
Lake County Sheriff’s Office for Victim Service Unit services. 

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

The Colorado Victim’s Rights Act (the “VRA”) ensures that crime1 victims are treated with fairness, 
respect, and dignity, and that they are free from intimidation, harassment, and abuse. The VRA 
additionally helps to ensure that victims are kept informed of critical stages of the criminal justice 
process and that they may be present for, and heard, at certain stages. It is the responsibility of law 
enforcement agencies, including the Leadville Police Department, to ensure that all victims of and 
witnesses to VRA crimes receive the rights afforded by the VRA. 

The Law Enforcement Victim Services Unit of the Lake County Sheriff’s Office (the “VSU”) operates 
to protect and ensure the understanding of rights as defined in the VRA. Advocates in the VSU work 
with victims, witnesses, families, and other sources/agencies to assist investigation by Deputies or 
Officers and the District Attorney’s Office to successfully prosecute violent acts of crime or any 
crime that falls under the Victim Rights Act. 

Lake County Sherriff’s Office has offered to allow Leadville’s Police Department to use the VSU’s 

 
1  The VRA only covers certain crimes including without limitation murder, manslaughter, assault, kidnapping, sexual 

assault, child abuse, etc., a full list of VRA crimes can be found at C.R.S. § 24-4.1-302(1). 



services. The Resolution would approve an MOU that allows the Leadville Police Department to 
use the VSU’s services, which will help ensure compliance with the VRA. 

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

N/A 

V. LEGAL ISSUES:   

This Resolution and Agreement would allow Leadville’s Police Department to use Lake County’s 
VSU services to comply with the VRA (a state requirement for all law enforcement agencies). 

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approving Resolution No. 4, Series of 2023. 

VII. COUNCIL OPTIONS: 

Council may take one of the following actions: 

1. Adopt the Resolution. 

2. Adopt the Resolution with amendments. 

3. Table for further discussion and consideration. 

VIII. PROPOSED MOTION:  

“I move to approve Resolution No. 4, Series of 2023: A Resolution Approving a Memorandum of 
Understanding with Lake County, Acting through the Lake County Sheriff’s Office, for Services by 
the Victim Services Unit.” 
 

IX. ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution No. 4, Series of 2023 



 
Lake County Sheriff’s Office 

Sheriff Heath Speckman 
PO Box 255 

505 Harrison Avenue 
Leadville, CO 80461 

719-486-1249 
 

The Law Enforcement Victim Services Unit under the Lake County Sheriff’s Office has a purpose of ensuring a common 
collaborative relationship between all victims of crime and law enforcement. Victims of crime are to include any victims within 
the County of Lake, inside or outside Leadville city limits. The Victim Services Program is to protect and ensure the 
understanding of rights as defined in the Victim Rights Act 18 U.S.C. § 3771 and the Constitution of the State of Colorado 
[Section 24-4.1-302(1) C.R.S.]. The Advocates in this Program are to work with victims, witnesses, families, and other 
sources/agencies to assist investigation by Deputies or Officers and the District Attorney’s Office to successfully prosecute 
violent acts of crime or any crime that falls under the Victim Rights Act. It is the responsibility of law enforcement agencies to 
ensure that all victims of and witnesses to crimes are honored and protected by those agencies, prosecutors, and judges in a 
manner no less vigorous than the protection afforded to criminal defendants. Other responsibilities of law enforcement 
agencies and law enforcement advocates include but are not limited to: 

 Treating all victims with fairness, dignity, and respect; victims are to be free from intimidation, harassment, or abuse 
throughout the criminal justice process 

 Notifying victims of decision not to file charges 
 Allowing victims free access to an unredacted copy of the initial incident report of the investigating law enforcement 

agency (with conditions based on status of the case/safety concerns) unless the investigation is pending 
 Allowing the victim to have access to resources for several services related to the victimization 
 Make all reasonable attempts to keep the victim and their family safe from harm that may arise from reporting, the 

investigation of, or prosecution of the crime 
 To inform victims of any rights which they have pursuant to the constitution of the U.S. or of Colorado 

The Law Enforcement Victim Services Unit shall assist law enforcement deputies and officers with the following responsibilities: 

 Follow-up support for the victim and their immediate family 
 Services for children, elderly, persons with disabilities or persons with special needs 
 Referral to counselling facilities and community service agencies 
 Transportation and household assistance to promote participation in court proceedings 

o Childcare services to enable the victim or their immediate family to testify/participate 
 Interpretation services as necessary 
 Notification of existence of a protection order and any modification requests that may be made 
 Provide a statement of the victim’s rights 
 Information concerning availability of victim assistance, medical and emergency services 
 Information concerning availability of compensatory benefits 
 Information concerning availability of protection of the victim including protective court orders 
 Contact information for the agency investigating the crime and the DA’s office, the investigating Deputy/Officer, and 

the case number  
 Notifying the victim of custody changes of the defendant 
 Notifying the victim of case status/when the defendant will see the judge for bond hearing, plea hearing, sentencing 

hearing, or any other proceedings not required per request of the victim 
 To assist child victims in understanding any proceedings that they will be requested to participate, as well as with 

coping with emotional impact of the crime and proceedings 
 Transportation and accompaniment to Forensic Interviews and/or SANE/FNE examinations 

With the high volume of responsibilities related to VRA crimes for law enforcement, as this list is not exhaustive, the Law 
Enforcement Victim Services Unit is available to assist law enforcement agencies in assuring these responsibilities are being met 
and that VRA C.R.S. is complied with. In order to make sure that ALL victims of crime are afforded these rights, it is important 
that the Lake County Sheriff’s Office and the Leadville Police Department work together so that no victim is left behind. 



 
Lake County Sheriff’s Office 

Sheriff Heath Speckman 
PO Box 255 

505 Harrison Avenue 
Leadville, CO 80461 

719-486-1249 
 

 

With this Memorandum of Understanding, the Leadville Police Department shall utilize the Lake County 
Sheriff’s Office Victim Services Unit for VRA needs and compliance as defined in the Victim Rights Act 18 
U.S.C. § 3771 and the Constitution of the State of Colorado [Section 24-4.1-302(1) C.R.S.]. There shall be 
a waiver of confidentiality so that information provided to the Advocate is shareable with the law 
enforcement agency investigating the crime. The Victim Advocate shall make reasonable efforts to 
ensure the confidentiality of each victim individually outside the scope of informing the law 
enforcement agency investigating the crime of any details that may be pertinent to the investigation 
itself. The Sheriff’s Office Victim Services Personnel shall ensure that the law enforcement agency 
investigating the crime is aware of the victim’s status and willingness to cooperate with and participate 
in the investigative process. The law enforcement agency shall ensure that the Victim Advocate has 
reasonable access to necessary case information to provide to the victim if requested, as well as to 
update the confidential tracking system utilized for the Victim Services Unit grant tracking. The Lake 
County Sheriff’s Office and Leadville Police Department shall make reasonable efforts to ensure the 
Deputies and Officers inform the Victim Advocate of any crime committed that falls under VRA as soon 
as possible in order to pursue these responsibilities in a timely manner, including calling the Advocate to 
the scene once it is secure. The Victim Advocate shall make reasonable efforts to ensure that the 
Deputies and Officers are informed of any updates in these responsibilities or any updates to the crimes 
listed in order to best serve the victims and their families.  

With this Memorandum of Understanding, the Lake County Sheriff’s Office and Leadville Police 
Department shall utilize the services of the Lake County Sheriff’s Office Victim Services Unit in 
collaboration with each other to ensure each and every victim of crime and their family is treated with 
fairness, dignity, and respect, and that each and every victim of crime and their family is afforded all of 
their rights as defined in the Victim Rights Act 18 U.S.C. § 3771 and the Constitution of the State of 
Colorado [Section 24-4.1-302(1) C.R.S.  

 

 

Sheriff 

 

Chief of Police 

 

Law Enforcement Victim Services Director 



 
 
 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO. 4 

SERIES OF 2023 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH 
LAKE COUNTY ACTING THROUGH THE LAKE COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 

FOR SERVICES BY THE VICTIM SERVICES UNIT  
 

WHEREAS, the provisions of Section 18 of Article XIV of the Colorado Constitution and 
Section 29-1-203 of the Colorado Revised Statutes (“C.R.S”) allow Colorado governments to 
cooperate and to contract with one another to provide any function, service, or facility lawfully 
authorized to each local government; and 

WHEREAS, Article II, Section 16A of the Colorado Constitution and Title 24, Article 4.1, 
Part 3, C.R.S. (“VRA”) guarantee certain rights to victims of crimes, specified in C.R.S. § 24-
4.1.302, and ensure that victims of such crimes receive fairness, respect, and dignity, and are free 
from intimidation, harassment, and abuse; and 

WHEREAS, the Leadville Police Department (“LPD”) has contact with victims of crime 
and is required to comply with the numerous law enforcement responsibilities set forth in the VRA; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Lake County Sheriff’s Office (“LCSO”) has a Law Enforcement Victim 
Services Unit (the “VSU”) that operates to ensure that the LCSO complies with the VRA and is 
available to assist other law enforcement agencies in complying with their obligations under the 
VRA; and 

WHEREAS, LPD’s use of the services and assistance provided by VSU will help ensure 
that all victims are afforded their rights as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it is in the best interests of the public health, safety, 
and welfare to approve a memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) with Lake County, acting 
through LCSO, for LPD’s use of the VSU services and to delegate authority to the Chief of Police 
to execute the MOU on behalf of the City when in final form. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as findings and 
determinations of City Council.  

 
Section 2. The City Council hereby: (a) approves the MOU concerning LPD’s use of 

VSU’s services in substantially the same form as attached hereto as Exhibit 1; (b) authorizes the 
City Attorney, in consultation with the Chief of Police, to make any non-substantive changes to 
the MOU as may be necessary; and (c) authorizes the Chief of Police to execute the MOU on 
behalf of the City once in final form. 

 



City of Leadville 
  Resolution No. 4 
  Series of 2023 

Page 2 
 

Section 3. Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 
resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the 
remaining issues of this resolution. 

 
Section 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 

approval of the City Council of the City of Leadville.  
 

 
ADOPTED this 7th day of February 2022 by a vote of   

___ in favor, ___ against, __ absent. 
 
 
 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

 
 
 

By: _______________________________  
 Greg Labbe, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
  Deputy City Clerk 
  



City of Leadville 
  Resolution No. 4 
  Series of 2023 

Page 3 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 
 

(see attached document)  
 



  

   

 AGENDA ITEM #8D 
 

 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 

               ______       
MEETING DATE: February 7, 2023   
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 5, Series of 2023: A Resolution Setting a Meeting Stipend for 

Regular Members of the Planning And Zoning Commission and Historic 
Preservation Commission  

 

PRESENTED BY:  Christiana McCormick, City Attorney 
 

 _____ORDINANCE 
 __X__RESOLUTION 
 _____MOTION 
 _____INFORMATION    
                               ______ 
                                                                                                      

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE: 

Before City Council for consideration is Resolution No. 5, Series of 2023 (“Ordinance”), which 
establishes the meeting stipend amount to be paid to Planning and Zoning Commission (“PC”) 
members and Historic Preservation Commission (“HPC”) members and establishes the 
applicability of such stipends for 2023.  

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

Council approved meeting stipends for PC and HPC members beginning in 2023 during its budget 
process in 2022. City Council also has on its agenda an ordinance (Ordinance No. 12, Series of 
2022) amending the municipal code to expressly permit the payment of such stipends. 

This Resolution assumes that Council adopts Ordinance No. 12, Series 2022. If approved, this 
Resolution sets the meeting stipend amount for HPC and PC in accordance with Ordinance 12, 
consistent with the City’s 2023 budget, and identifies which members of PC and HPC are eligible 
for the stipends.   

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

Council approved a meeting stipend of $200.00 per month for regular members of PC and HPC in 
its 2023 budget.   

V. LEGAL ISSUES:   



 None. 

VI. RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt Resolution No. 5, Series of 2023 to set the meeting stipend amounts and applicability for PC 
and HPC in 2023. 

VII. COUNCIL OPTIONS: 

Council may take one of the following actions: 

1. Adopt the Resolution. 

2. Adopt the Resolution with amendments. 

3. Table for further discussion and consideration. 

VIII. PROPOSED MOTION:  

“I move to adopt Resolution No. 5, Series of 2023: A Resolution Setting a Meeting Stipend for 
Regular Members of the Planning And Zoning Commission and Historic Preservation 
Commission.”  

IX. ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution No. 5, Series of 2023 



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO
RESOLUTION NO. 5

SERIES OF 2023

A RESOLUTION SETTING A MEETING STIPEND FOR REGULAR MEMBERS OF THE 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes that members of the Planning and Zoning Commission 
(“PC”) and Historic Preservation Commission (“HPC”) serve an important role to the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to approve a meeting stipend to be paid to the regular 
members of the PC and HPC for meeting attendance; and

WHEREAS, Council has budgeted for such stipends in the 2023 budget and adopted Ordinance 
No. 12, Series of 2022, which permits the payment of such meeting stipends to PC and HPC members; 
and

WHEREAS, City Council finds that adoption of this Resolution is in the best interests of the 
public health, safety, and welfare. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Leadville, 
Colorado, as follows:

Section 1. Stipend Amount. City Council hereby sets the stipend for regular PC and HPC 
members at two hundred dollars ($200.00) per month for meeting attendance. 

Section 2. Applicability. Stipends will be paid to the six (6) regular members of the PC and 
the five (5) regular members of the HPC. Meeting stipends shall not be paid to the ex officio or two (2) 
alternate members of the PC, and meeting stipends shall not be paid to the two (2) alternate or two (2) 
advisory committee members of the HPC.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 

ADOPTED this 7th day of February, 2023 by a vote of 

___ in favor,  ___ against, and ___ absent.

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO:
 

___________________________________
Greg Labbe, Mayor

ATTEST: 

___________________________________
Deputy City Clerk



  

   

 AGENDA ITEM #8E 
 

 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 

               ______       
MEETING DATE: February 7, 2023   
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1, Series of 2023: An Ordinance Establishing a Temporary 

Moratorium on the Acceptance, Processing, and Approval of Any New Business 
Licenses for the Rental, Leasing, or Guiding of Off-Highway Vehicles in the City of 
Leadville (second reading)  

 

PRESENTED BY:  Christiana McCormick, City Attorney 
 

 __X__ORDINANCE 
 _____RESOLUTION 
 _____MOTION 
 _____INFORMATION    
                               ______ 
                                                                                                      

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE: 

Before City Council for consideration is Ordinance No. 1, Series of 2023 (“Ordinance”), which 
would place a temporary moratorium on the acceptance and processing of applications for new 
business licenses for the guiding, rental, or leasing of off-highway vehicles (“OHVs”) within the 
City.  

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

City Council adopted this Ordinance with certain amendments on first reading at its January 3, 
2023 meeting. The amendments requested by Council are shown in the attached redline. Please 
note that there is one amendment to the Ordinance in addition to Council’s requested 
amendments that defines “guiding” to clarify that term in the context of OHVs and this 
moratorium. 

The City is pursuing the implementation of new regulations for OHVs, and the purpose of the 
temporary moratorium is to preserve the status quo while the need for new regulations is 
analyzed and any new regulations are developed.  

The moratorium would be effective until January 18, 2024. This time period would be 
approximately ten (10) months from the effective date of the Ordinance. Under the Ordinance, 
the City has the option of terminating the Ordinance sooner than January 18, 2024, if desired or 
needed.  



Should City Council adopt this Ordinance, no new business license applications for the rental, 
leasing, or guiding of OHVs may be accepted or approved until the Ordinance is repealed or 
terminates.  

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

N/A 

V. LEGAL ISSUES:   

This Ordinance would adopt a lawful moratorium because it is for a reasonable duration 
(approximately 10 months) and for a legitimate government purpose (provide the City time to 
consider and implement new OHV regulations).  

When a municipality adopts an ordinance creating a moratorium, such as one that temporarily 
stops the City from granting new licenses or permits, such action can raise eminent domain 
concerns under the Takings Clause of the United States Constitution. When determining whether 
a temporary moratorium is a “taking” that, under principles of justice and fairness, requires 
compensation, courts consider factors of each particular situation, such as the economic impact 
of the regulation, the extent to which the regulation has interfered with distinct investment-
backed expectations, and the character of the governmental action. 

However, moratoriums that are reasonable in duration and made in good faith for a legitimate 
government purpose (e.g., to complete a decision-making process regarding potential municipal 
code amendments) do not constitute a taking or require compensation to a property owner.  

In Colorado, courts have upheld moratoriums for as long as ten (10) months, including in Williams 
v. City of Central when Central City enacted a moratorium on issuing licenses for new casinos 
while it studied the impact of allowing more casinos into the community. Depending on the 
reason for the moratorium, the reasonable time could be longer. In 2002, for example, the U.S. 
Supreme Court upheld a development moratorium in California that lasted thirty-two (32) 
months to allow for the completion of environmental assessments and reports on Lake Tahoe. 

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends adopting Ordinance No. 1, Series of 2023 on second reading. 

VII. COUNCIL OPTIONS: 

Council may take one of the following actions: 

1. Adopt the Ordinance. 

2. Adopt the Ordinance with amendments. 

3. Table for further discussion and consideration. 

VIII. PROPOSED MOTION:  

“I move to adopt Ordinance No. 1, Series of 2023, An Ordinance Establishing a Temporary 
Moratorium on the Acceptance, Processing, and Approval of Any New Business Licenses for the 
Rental, Leasing, or Guiding of Off-Highway Vehicles in the City of Leadville on second reading.”  

IX. ATTACHMENTS: 

Ordinance No. 1, Series of 2023 



 

 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO  
ORDINANCE NO. 1 

SERIES OF 2023 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON 
THE ACCEPTANCE, PROCESSING AND APPROVAL OF ANY NEW 
BUSINESS LICENSES FOR THE SALE, RENTAL, OR LEASING, OR 

GUIDING OF OFF-HIGHWAY VEHICLES IN THE CITY OF 
LEADVILLE 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leadville (“City Council”) possesses the 

authority pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-15-401 and its general police powers to pass and enforce 
regulations which may be necessary or expedient for the promotion of the health, safety and welfare 
of the citizens of Leadville; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-15-501 to license and 

regulate any lawful occupation, business place, amusement, or place of amusement and to fix the 
amount, terms and manner of issuing and revoking licenses issued therefor; and 

 
WHEREAS, 5.04.010 of Title 5 of the Leadville Municipal Code (“Code”) requires that 

“every person, firm, partnership, corporation or other business entity must obtain a business license 
from the city before operating, conducting or carrying on any for-profit retail trade, profession or 
business within the city”; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council is further authorized pursuant to C.R.S. § 33-14.5-110 to 
regulate the operation of off-highway vehicles (“OHV”) on public lands, water and property under 
its jurisdiction and on streets and highways within its boundaries by appropriate ordinance if such 
regulations are not inconsistent with state law; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan recognizes the importance of tourism’s contribution 

to the economy by bringing outside money into Leadville and Lake County and by showcasing 
Leadville and Lake County to other areas; and  

WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan also supports efforts to connect the City to 
neighborhoods and destinations in the unincorporated County while balancing safety and emergency 
services; and  

 
WHEREAS, Lake County previously adopted ordinance No. 12-02 approving all County 

Roads designated for multi-purpose use which includes the regulation of OHVs; and  
 
WHEREAS, Lake County is undertaking a comprehensive review of both current and future 

uses of OHVs; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to develop fair, clear OHV licensing regulations in 

accordance with the goals and strategies set forth in the City's Comprehensive Plan at or around the 
same time as Lake County is developing its OHV regulationsthe City Council desires to develop fair, 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 1 
Series of 2023                            
Page 2 of 4 

 
 
 

clear OHV licensing regulations, consistent with Lake County and in accordance with the goals and 
strategies set forth in the City’s Comprehensive Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City recognizes the importance of establishing the appropriate balance 

between the varying goals in the City’s Comprehensive Plan of attracting new businesses, supporting 
existing businesses, encouraging tourism, and promoting businesses that serve both local residents 
and visitors and that augment the inventory of businesses within the City serving the day-to-day 
needs of residents; and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority stated herein, the City Council finds that a temporary 
moratorium until and including Thursday, January 18, 2024 on the issuance of new business licenses 
for the saleguiding, rental, or leasing of OHVs, as defined in this Ordinance, is reasonable and 
necessary to allow the City time to properly investigate and develop, and if appropriate, adopt and 
implement new or revised regulations concerning OHVs necessary to best preserve the health, peace 
and safety of the City. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF 
LEADVILLE, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby adopted as findings of the City 

Council and are incorporated herein by this reference.  
 
Section 2. Moratorium. No applications for new business licenses for the saleguiding, 

rental, or leasing of OHVs under Title 5 of the Code shall be accepted, reviewed, considered or 
approved until such time as this Ordinance is terminated or repealed, unless otherwise expressly 
provided by this Ordinance. For the purpose of this Ordinance, “guiding” shall mean the provision 
of guided OHV tours. The provisions of this Ordinance are temporary in nature and intended to be 
replaced or repealed by a subsequent legislative enactment. The temporary moratorium established 
by this Ordinance shall automatically terminate and this Ordinance shall automatically be repealed 
as of 11:59 P.M. on Thursday, January 18, 2024, unless terminated earlier by City Council or 
extended in its duration by the enactment of another ordinance. Nothing contained in this Ordinance 
shall be construed to limit or preclude the City Council from termination, repeal, amendment, or 
modification of this Ordinance prior to the date and time of expiration and repeal.   

 
Section 3. Definition. "Off-highway vehicle" means any self-propelled vehicle which is 

designed to travel on wheels or tracks in contact with the ground, which is designed primarily for 
use off of the public highways, and which is generally and commonly used to transport persons for 
recreational purposes. "Off-highway vehicle" does not include the following:  
 

1. Vehicles designed and used primarily for travel on, over, or in the water;  

2. Snowmobiles;  

3. Military vehicles;  

4. Golf carts;  

5. Vehicles designed and used to carry disabled persons;  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 1 
Series of 2023                            
Page 3 of 4 

 
 
 

6. Vehicles designed and used specifically for agricultural, logging, or mining purposes; or  

7. Vehicles registered pursuant to Article 3 of Title 42, C.R.S.  

 
Section 4. Preservation of Status Quo and Violation. Any person or entity that has 

received a business license from the City prior to the effective date of this Ordinance may continue 
to rely on such licenses throughout the duration of this Ordinance. Any person who violates this 
Ordinance may be subject to the general penalty provisions of the Leadville Municipal Code and 
enforcement action in Leadville Municipal Court.   

 
Section 5. Remaining provisions. Except as specified in this Ordinance, all other 

provisions of the Leadville Municipal Code shall continue in full force and effect. This Ordinance 
makes no amendments to the Leadville Municipal Code and temporarily suspends the provisions 
specified herein only. 
 

Section 6. Severability. Should any one or more sections or provisions of this Ordinance 
be judicially determined invalid or unenforceable, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate 
the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, the intention being that the various sections and provisions 
are severable. 

 
Section 7. Repeal.  Any and all ordinances or codes or parts thereof in conflict or 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed; provided, 
however, that the repeal of any such ordinance or code or part thereof shall not revive any other 
section or part of any ordinance or code provision heretofore repealed or superseded and this repeal 
shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed 
in violation of any ordinance or code hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this ordinance. 

 
Section 8. Safety Clause.  The City Council hereby finds, determines, and declares that 

this Ordinance is promulgated under the general police power of the City of Leadville, that it is 
promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary for 
the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public convenience and welfare.  The 
City Council further determines that the Ordinance bears a rational relation to the proper legislative 
object sought to be attained. 

 
Section 9. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after 

publication following final passage. 
 

INTRODUCED, READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED in full on first 
reading this 3rd day of January, 2023 by a vote of _____ in favor, ____ against, and _____ 
absent. 

 
 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 1 
Series of 2023                            
Page 4 of 4 

 
 
 

 
______________________________________ 

     Greg Labbe, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
PUBLISHED in full in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper of general circulation in the 
City of Leadville, Colorado, on this ________ day of __________________, 2023. 

 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FINAL READING AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, 

with any amendments, this ____day of ______, 2023 by a vote of _____ in favor, ______ 
against, and _____ absent. 
 
 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Greg Labbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
PUBLISHED by title only in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper of general circulation in the City 
of Leadville, Colorado, following final reading on this ________ day of _______________, 2023. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 1 
Series of 2023                                                                                                                  
Page 1 of 4 

 
 
 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO  
ORDINANCE NO. 1 

SERIES OF 2023 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON 
THE ACCEPTANCE, PROCESSING, AND APPROVAL OF ANY NEW 
BUSINESS LICENSES FOR THE  RENTAL, LEASING, OR GUIDING 

OF OFF-HIGHWAY VEHICLES IN THE CITY OF LEADVILLE 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leadville (“City Council”) possesses the 
authority pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-15-401 and its general police powers to pass and enforce 
regulations which may be necessary or expedient for the promotion of the health, safety and welfare 
of the citizens of Leadville; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-15-501 to license and 

regulate any lawful occupation, business place, amusement, or place of amusement and to fix the 
amount, terms, and manner of issuing and revoking licenses issued therefor; and 

 
WHEREAS, 5.04.010 of Title 5 of the Leadville Municipal Code (“Code”) requires that 

“every person, firm, partnership, corporation or other business entity must obtain a business license 
from the city before operating, conducting or carrying on any for-profit retail trade, profession or 
business within the city”; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council is further authorized pursuant to C.R.S. § 33-14.5-110 to 
regulate the operation of off-highway vehicles (“OHV”) on public lands, water, and property under 
its jurisdiction and on streets and highways within its boundaries by appropriate ordinance if such 
regulations are not inconsistent with state law; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan recognizes the importance of tourism’s contribution 

to the economy by bringing outside money into Leadville and Lake County and by showcasing 
Leadville and Lake County to other areas; and  

WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan also supports efforts to connect the City to 
neighborhoods and destinations in the unincorporated County while balancing safety and emergency 
services; and  

 
WHEREAS, Lake County previously adopted ordinance No. 12-02 approving all County 

Roads designated for multi-purpose use which includes the regulation of OHVs; and  
 
WHEREAS, Lake County is undertaking a comprehensive review of both current and future 

uses of OHVs; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to develop fair, clear OHV licensing regulations in 

accordance with the goals and strategies set forth in the City's Comprehensive Plan at or around the 
same time as Lake County is developing its OHV regulations; and 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 1 
Series of 2023                                                                                                                  
Page 2 of 4 

 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City recognizes the importance of establishing the appropriate balance 
between the varying goals in the City’s Comprehensive Plan of attracting new businesses, supporting 
existing businesses, encouraging tourism, and promoting businesses that serve both local residents 
and visitors and that augment the inventory of businesses within the City serving the day-to-day 
needs of residents; and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority stated herein, the City Council finds that a temporary 
moratorium until and including Thursday, January 18, 2024 on the issuance of new business licenses 
for the guiding, rental, or leasing of OHVs, as defined in this Ordinance, is reasonable and necessary 
to allow the City time to properly investigate, develop, and, if appropriate, adopt and implement new 
or revised regulations concerning OHVs necessary to best preserve the health, peace, and safety of the 
City. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF 
LEADVILLE, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby adopted as findings of the City 

Council and are incorporated herein by this reference.  
 
Section 2. Moratorium. No applications for new business licenses for the guiding, rental, 

or leasing of OHVs under Title 5 of the Code shall be accepted, reviewed, considered, or approved 
until such time as this Ordinance is terminated or repealed, unless otherwise expressly provided by 
this Ordinance. For the purpose of this Ordinance, “guiding” shall mean the provision of guided 
OHV tours. The provisions of this Ordinance are temporary in nature and intended to be replaced or 
repealed by a subsequent legislative enactment. The temporary moratorium established by this 
Ordinance shall automatically terminate and this Ordinance shall automatically be repealed as of 
11:59 P.M. on Thursday, January 18, 2024, unless terminated earlier by City Council or extended 
in its duration by the enactment of another ordinance. Nothing contained in this Ordinance shall be 
construed to limit or preclude the City Council from termination, repeal, amendment, or modification 
of this Ordinance prior to the date and time of expiration and repeal.   

 
Section 3. Definition. "Off-highway vehicle" means any self-propelled vehicle which is 

designed to travel on wheels or tracks in contact with the ground, which is designed primarily for 
use off of the public highways, and which is generally and commonly used to transport persons for 
recreational purposes. "Off-highway vehicle" does not include the following:  
 

1. Vehicles designed and used primarily for travel on, over, or in the water;  
2. Snowmobiles;  
3. Military vehicles;  
4. Golf carts;  
5. Vehicles designed and used to carry disabled persons;  
6. Vehicles designed and used specifically for agricultural, logging, or mining purposes; or  
7. Vehicles registered pursuant to Article 3 of Title 42, C.R.S.  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 1 
Series of 2023                                                                                                                  
Page 3 of 4 

 
 
 

 
Section 4. Preservation of Status Quo and Violation. Any person or entity that has 

received a business license from the City prior to the effective date of this Ordinance may continue 
to rely on such licenses throughout the duration of this Ordinance. Any person who violates this 
Ordinance may be subject to the general penalty provisions of the Leadville Municipal Code and 
enforcement action in Leadville Municipal Court.   

 
Section 5. Remaining provisions. Except as specified in this Ordinance, all other 

provisions of the Leadville Municipal Code shall continue in full force and effect. This Ordinance 
makes no amendments to the Leadville Municipal Code and temporarily suspends the provisions 
specified herein only. 
 

Section 6. Severability. Should any one or more sections or provisions of this Ordinance 
be judicially determined invalid or unenforceable, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate 
the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, the intention being that the various sections and provisions 
are severable. 

 
Section 7. Repeal.  Any and all ordinances or codes or parts thereof in conflict or 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed; provided, 
however, that the repeal of any such ordinance or code or part thereof shall not revive any other 
section or part of any ordinance or code provision heretofore repealed or superseded and this repeal 
shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed 
in violation of any ordinance or code hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this ordinance. 

 
Section 8. Safety Clause.  The City Council hereby finds, determines, and declares that 

this Ordinance is promulgated under the general police power of the City of Leadville, that it is 
promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary for 
the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public convenience and welfare.  The 
City Council further determines that the Ordinance bears a rational relation to the proper legislative 
object sought to be attained. 

 
Section 9. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after 

publication following final passage. 
 

INTRODUCED, READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED in full on first 
reading this 3rd day of January, 2023 by a vote of _____ in favor, ____ against, and _____ 
absent. 

 
 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

 
 

______________________________________ 
     Greg Labbe, Mayor 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 1 
Series of 2023                                                                                                                  
Page 4 of 4 

 
 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
PUBLISHED in full in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of 
Leadville, Colorado, on this 12th day of January, 2023. 

 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FINAL READING AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, 

with any amendments, this 7th day of February, 2023 by a vote of _____ in favor, ______ 
against, and _____ absent. 
 
 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Greg Labbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
PUBLISHED by title only in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper of general circulation in the City 
of Leadville, Colorado, following final reading on this ________ day of _______________, 2023. 



  

   

 AGENDA ITEM #8F 
 

 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 

               ______       
MEETING DATE: February 7, 2023   
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 12, Series of 2022: An Ordinance Amending Section 2.48.020 of 

the Leadville Municipal Code and Adding New Sections 2.36.080 and 2.48.060 
to Permit Members of the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Historic 
Preservation Commission to Receive Meeting Stipends Approved by City 
Council (Second Reading)  

 

PRESENTED BY:  Christiana McCormick, City Attorney 
 

 __X__ORDINANCE 
 _____RESOLUTION 
 _____MOTION 
 _____INFORMATION    
                               ______ 
                                                                                                      

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE: 

Before City Council for consideration is Ordinance No. 12, Series of 2022 (“Ordinance”), which 
amends the Leadville Municipal Code (“Code”) to allow for Planning and Zoning Commission 
(“PC”) members and Historic Preservation Commission (“HPC”) members to receive meeting 
stipends set by city council.  

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

City Council passed this Ordinance on first reading with no amendments at its meeting on 
December 20, 2022.  

Council approved meeting stipends for PC and HPC members beginning in 2023 during its budget 
process in 2022. Currently, there is no language in the Code addressing stipends or payment to 
the PC, and there is language in the Code stating that HPC members must serve without 
compensation. The Ordinance amends the Code to expressly permit stipends to be paid to PC 
members and HPC members, and it removes language that conflicts with the approval of the 
stipends.  

The Ordinance makes one additional Code amendment to ensure consistency between the PC 
and HPC code provisions concerning reimbursement of expenses. Members of any municipal 
commission are allowed to be reimbursed for reasonable expenses related to the commission 
member’s functions as a commission member, if approved by city council. The Code contains 



language allowing such reimbursement for HPC but not for PC. The Ordinance changes the Code 
language to be consistent for both commissions.  

The Ordinance allows stipends to be set by resolution of Council, and a resolution setting the 
stipend amounts approved for 2023 is included in this meeting agenda. Approval of stipends by 
resolution will allow Council flexibility in making adjustments to stipends as needed and when 
needed, as long as there are sufficient funds in the budget for the adjustment, without having to 
revise the Code or wait for the annual budget process.  

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

Council approved a meeting stipend of $200.00 per month for regular members of PC and HPC 
beginning in January 2023.   

V. LEGAL ISSUES:   

 None. 

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends adopting Ordinance No. 12, Series of 2022 on second reading. 

VII. COUNCIL OPTIONS: 

Council may take one of the following actions: 

1. Adopt the Ordinance. 

2. Adopt the Ordinance with amendments. 

3. Table for further discussion and consideration. 

VIII. PROPOSED MOTION:  

“I move to adopt Ordinance No. 12, Series of 2022, An Ordinance Amending Section 2.48.020 of 
the Leadville Municipal Code and Adding New Sections 2.36.080 and 2.48.060 to Permit Members 
of the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Historic Preservation Commission to Receive 
Meeting Stipends Approved by City Council on second reading.”  

IX. ATTACHMENTS: 

Ordinance No. 12, Series of 2022 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 12 
Series of 2022                                                                                                                  
Page 1 

 

 
 
 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO  
ORDINANCE NO. 12 

SERIES OF 2022 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 2.48.020 OF THE LEADVILLE 
MUNICIPAL CODE AND ADDING NEW SECTIONS 2.36.080 AND 2.48.060 TO 
PERMIT MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION AND 
THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION TO RECEIVE MEETING 

STIPENDS APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leadville (“City Council”) possesses the 
authority pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-15-401 and its general police powers to pass and enforce 
regulations which may be necessary or expedient for the promotion of the health, safety, and welfare 
of the citizens of Leadville; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes that members of the Planning and Zoning 

Commission (“PC”) and Historic Preservation Commission (“HPC”) serve an important role to the 
City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to approve a meeting stipend to be paid to each 

member of the PC and HPC for meeting attendance; and 
 
WHEREAS, currently, the Leadville Municipal Code (the “Code”) does not specifically 

reference stipends for PC members; and 
 
WHEREAS, furthermore, Section 2.48.020 of the Code prohibits members of the HPC from 

receiving compensation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend the Code to allow for members of the PC 

and HPC to receive meeting stipends approved by City Council and to ensure the Code contains 
consistent language concerning allowable reimbursement for expenses related to commission 
members’ functions for both PC and HPC; and  

 
WHEREAS, City Council has determined that adoption of this Ordinance is in the best 

interests of the public health, safety, and welfare.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF 

LEADVILLE, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals contained above are incorporated herein by reference 
and are adopted as findings and determinations of the City Council. 

Section 2. Section 2.36.080 Added. Chapter 2.36 of the Leadville Municipal Code is 
hereby amended to add a new section 2.36.080 to read in full as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 12 
Series of 2022                                                                                                                  
Page 2 

 

 
 
 

Sec. 2.36.080. – Meeting stipend and expense reimbursement. 

Commission members may be entitled to a meeting stipend for meeting attendance in an 
amount established by resolution of the city council. Commission members may additionally 
receive reimbursement of reasonable expenses related to the functions of the commission to 
the extent approved by city council.  

 

Section 3. Chapter 2.48 Amended. Chapter 2.48 of the Leadville Municipal Code is 
hereby amended as follows with strikethrough text showing deletions and bold, underlined text 
showing additions: 

Sec. 2.48.020. – Membership and Qualifications. 

A. Membership. 

1. Regular Members. Five members of the HPC shall be appointed by the mayor, 
with the consent of the city council, providing a balanced community-wide 
representation. Members of HPC shall serve without compensation. To the 
extent authorized by the city council and funds are budgeted and appropriated 
therefor, members may be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred, such as 
training, or expenses incidental to the performance of their duties for HPC. 

 
 

Sec. 2.48.060. – Meeting stipend and expense reimbursement. 

HPC members may be entitled to a meeting stipend for meeting attendance in an 
amount established by resolution of the city council. HPC members may additionally 
receive reimbursement of reasonable expenses related to the functions of the HPC to 
the extent approved by city council. 

 

Section 4. Remaining Provisions.  Except as specifically amended hereby, all other 
provisions of the Leadville Municipal Code shall continue in full force and effect. 

Section 5. Codification Amendments.  The codifier of Leadville’s Municipal Code is 
hereby authorized to make such numerical, technical, and formatting changes as may be necessary 
to incorporate the provisions of this Ordinance within the Leadville Municipal Code. 

Section 6. Severability.  Should any one or more sections or provisions of this Ordinance 
be judicially determined invalid or unenforceable, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate 
the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, the intention being that the various sections and 
provisions are severable. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 12 
Series of 2022                                                                                                                  
Page 3 

 

 
 
 

Section 7. Repeal.  Any and all ordinances or codes or parts thereof in conflict or 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed; provided, 
however, that the repeal of any such ordinance or code or part thereof shall not revive any other 
section or part of any ordinance or code provision heretofore repealed or superseded and this repeal 
shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed 
in violation of any ordinance or code hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Ordinance. 

Section 8. Safety Clause.  The City Council hereby finds, determines, and declares that 
this Ordinance is promulgated under the general police power of the City of Leadville, that it is 
promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary for 
the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public convenience and welfare.  The 
City Council further determines that the Ordinance bears a rational relation to the proper legislative 
object sought to be attained. 

Section 9. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after 
publication following final passage. 

 
 
 
INTRODUCED, READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED in full on first 

reading this 20th day December, 2022. 
 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

 
 

______________________________________ 
     Greg Labbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
 

 
PUBLISHED in full in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of 
Leadville, Colorado, on the 29th day of December, 2022. 
 

 
  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 12 
Series of 2022                                                                                                                  
Page 4 

 

 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FINAL READING AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, 
with any amendments, this 7th day of February, 2022. 
 
 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Greg Labbe, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY, with any amendments, in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper of 
general circulation in the City of Leadville, Colorado, following final reading on this ________ day 
of _______________, 2022. 



F
eb

 2
02

3
C

ity
 C

al
en

da
r

29
30

31
1

2
3

4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11

12
13

14
15

16
17

18

19
20

21
22

23
24

25

26
27

28
1

2
3

4

5p
m

 - 
S

an
ita

tio
n 

@
 

6p
m

 - 
LU

R
A

 B
oa

rd
 

11
am

 - 
B

O
C

C
 @

 5
05

 

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

1p
m

 - 
Le

ad
vi

lle
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 

5:
15

pm
 - 

P
ar

kv
ill

e 
W

at
er

 

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

P
re

si
de

nt
's

 D
ay

 - 
C

ity
 H

al
l 

8:
30

am
 - 

To
ur

is
m

 P
an

el
 

11
am

 - 
B

O
C

C
 @

 5
00

 

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg
 @

 

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 M

tg
 

5p
m

 - 
S

an
ita

tio
n 

@
 

6p
m

 - 
LU

R
A

 B
oa

rd
 

Su
n

M
on

Tu
e

W
ed

Th
u

Fr
i

S
at



M
ar

 2
02

3
C

ity
 C

al
en

da
r

26
27

28
1

2
3

4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11

12
13

14
15

16
17

18

19
20

21
22

23
24

25

26
27

28
29

30
31

1

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 M

tg
 

5p
m

 - 
S

an
ita

tio
n 

@
 

6p
m

 - 
LU

R
A

 B
oa

rd
 

11
am

 - 
B

O
C

C
 @

 5
05

 

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

1p
m

 - 
Le

ad
vi

lle
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 

5:
15

pm
 - 

P
ar

kv
ill

e 
W

at
er

 

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

8:
30

am
 - 

To
ur

is
m

 P
an

el
 

11
am

 - 
B

O
C

C
 @

 5
00

 

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg
 @

 

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 M

tg
 

Su
n

M
on

Tu
e

W
ed

Th
u

Fr
i

S
at



A
pr

 2
02
3

C
ity

 C
al

en
da

r

26
27

28
29

30
31

1

2
3

4
5

6
7

8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15

16
17

18
19

20
21

22

23
24

25
26

27
28

29

30
1

2
3

4
5

6

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 M

tg
 

11
am

 - 
B

O
C

C
 @

 5
05

 

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg

5p
m

 - 
S

an
ita

tio
n 

@
 

6p
m

 - 
LU

R
A

 B
oa

rd
 

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

1p
m

 - 
Le

ad
vi

lle
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 

5:
15

pm
 - 

P
ar

kv
ill

e 
W

at
er

 

8:
30

am
 - 

To
ur

is
m

 P
an

el
 

11
am

 - 
B

O
C

C
 @

 5
00

 

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg
 @

 

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 M

tg
 

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

11
am

 - 
B

O
C

C
 @

 5
05

 

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg

5p
m

 - 
S

an
ita

tio
n 

@
 

6p
m

 - 
LU

R
A

 B
oa

rd
 

Su
n

M
on

Tu
e

W
ed

Th
u

Fr
i

S
at


	1 - Final Agenda and Meeting Packet 2.7.2023.pdf
	3- 2.07.2023 Agenda
	6A - DRAFT MINUTES 1.17.2023
	7A - 2022 City of Leadville Retrospective
	�
	Slide Number 2
	Key City Government Functions
	Providing Essential Services
	Providing Essential Services
	Administration Department
	Administration Department
	Animal Shelter
	Animal Shelter
	Animal Shelter�The Animal Shelter also brought on new kennel techs and is now fully staffed!
	Fire Department��"Reducing Community Risk Through Excellence in Emergency Services"
	Fire Department
	Fire Department
	Fire Department
	Municipal Court
	Planning Department�For the first time since its incorporation in 1878, �the city has an official Planning Department! 
	Planning Department
	Police Department
	Police Department
	Police Department
	Streets Department
	Streets Department
	Streets Department
	Preserving and Honoring our Past
	Preserving and Honoring our Past�Camp Hale was declared a National Monument by President Biden and a contingent from Leadville/Lake County was invited to attend the dedication.�
	Planning for the Future
	Employee Retention
	Housing
	Housing
	Thank you to the all the city employees, �City Council and city partners�for your hard work in 2022
	Questions?

	8B1 - CCF_Reso 3 Series 2023_2023 Fee Schedule (2-07-23 mtg)
	8B2 - 2023 Reso 3 Series 2023 Adopt 2023 Fee Schedule final (2-07-23 mtg)
	8B3 - Proposed 2023 Fee Schedule
	8B4 - Proposed 2023 Animal Shelter Fee Schedule
	8B5 - 2023 Planning Dept. Fee Schedule MEMO
	8B6 - LLCFR Memorandum 2023 Fee Schedule
	8B7 - Memorandum for Animal Shelter Fee Schedule.docx(1)
	8C1 - CCF_Res 4 Series 2023_Victim Rights Services.clean (1)
	8C2 - MOU.PD.SO.VRA
	8C3 - Reso 4 Series 2023_Approve VRA MOU. clean
	8D1 - CCF_Reso 5 Series 2023_PC-HPC Stipends (2-7-23 mtg)
	8D2 - Reso 5 Series 2023_PC-HPC Meeting Stipends
	CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO

	8E1 - CCF_Ord 1 Series 2023_OHV Moratorium second reading (2-7-23 mtg)
	8E2 - Ord 1 Series 2023_OHV Moratorium_Redlines
	8E3 - Ord. 1 Series 2023_ OHV License Moratorium (clean-second reading 2-7-23)
	8F1 - CCF_Ord 12 Series 2022_PC-HPC Stipends second reading (2-7-23 mtg)
	8F2 - Ord. 12 Series 2022_Stipends for PC and HPC members (second reading)
	10A - February 2023
	10B - March 2023
	10C - April 2023

	8D2 - Reso 5 Series 2023 - Updated 2.6.2023



